
 

Page 1 of 4 

    
    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Be Courteous - TURN OFF your cell phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

5:00 – 6:30 P.M. – JOINT STUDY SESSION (HELD IN THE EOC) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL: 
CITY COUNCIL:  Cook, Agrimonti, Edwards, Hundley, Gallian 
PLANNING COMMISSION: Coleman, Cribb, McDonald, Roberson, Sek, Wellander, Willers, Felder 
 

SS.1: Discussion, consideration and possible direction to staff on housing-related topics 
presented during the May 16, 2016 joint City Council-Planning Commission Study 
Session 

 

6:30 P.M. – CONCURRENT CITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 
(HELD IN THE COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM) 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL:  (Cook, Agrimonti, Edwards, Hundley, Gallian) 
 

1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is 
recommended that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters 
presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the City Council at this time.  For 
items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Council consideration.  Upon being acknowledged by the Mayor, please step to the 
podium and speak into the microphone.  Begin by stating and spelling your name. 
 

2. MEETING DEDICATIONS 

 

3. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Item 3A: School Attendance Awareness Month Proclamation 
 
Item 3B: Freedom Week Sonoma Proclamation  
 
Item 3C:   Update by Sonoma Clean Power on Program Status and Future Activities 

CITY OF SONOMA 
 

SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY AUGUST 15, 2016 

 

JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 5:00 – 6:30 P.M. 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER (EOC) 
175 First Street West, Sonoma CA 

 

&  
 

CONCURRENT MEETINGS OF THE SONOMA CITY COUNCIL &  
CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE DISSOLVED 

SONOMA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 6:30 P.M. 
Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 

 

**** 
AGENDA 

City Council 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

Madolyn Agrimonti, MPT 
David Cook, 

Gary Edwards 
Rachel Hundley 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL 

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 
single motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, 
staff, or public request specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may 
decide to change the order of the agenda. 
 
Item 4A: Waive Further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of Ordinances 

by Title Only.  (Standard procedural action - no backup information provided) 
 
Item 4B: Approval of the minutes of the July 6 and July 18, 2016 City Council Meetings. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve the minutes. 
 
Item 4C: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Award Contract to Peckham & 

McKenney for Executive Search Services (City Manager) and Authorize the City 
Manager to Sign. 

  Staff Recommendation:  Award contract to Peckham & McKenney for Executive 
Search Services for the position of City Manager and authorize the City Manager to 
sign on behalf of the City. 

 
Item 4D: Acceptance of the City of Sonoma Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

(CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 as prepared in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board statements.   

  Staff Recommendation:  Accept. 
 
Item 4E: Approval and ratification of the appointment of Thomas Haeuser to the Sonoma 

County Library Commission for a four-year term. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve and ratify the appointment. 
 
Item 4F: Approval of a waiver of commission attendance rules for Planning 

Commissioner Chip Roberson. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve. 
 
Item 4G: Approval of a waiver of the limitation on successive terms and ratification of the 

reappointment of Pam Personette to the Cultural and Fine Arts Commission. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve the waiver and ratify the reappointment. 
 
Item 4H: Approval and ratification of the reappointment of Kate Schertz to the Cultural 

and Fine Arts Commission. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve and ratify the reappointment. 
 
Item 4I: Approval and ratification of the reappointment of Fred Allebach to the 

Community Services and Environment Commission for an additional four-year 
term. 

  Staff Recommendation:  Approve and ratify the reappointment. 
  



 

Page 3 of 4 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 
single motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, 
staff, or public request specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may 
decide to change the order of the agenda. 
 
Item 5A: Approval of the portions of the minutes of the July 6 and July 18, 2016 City 

Council meetings pertaining to the Successor Agency. 
  Staff Recommendation:  Approve the minutes. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Item 6A: Discussion, consideration, and possible adoption of a resolution approving 

Climate Action 2020 and Beyond and making responsible agency findings 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), including a 
statement of overriding considerations.   (Associate Planner) 

  Staff Recommendation:  Adopt a Resolution approving Climate Action 2020 and 
Beyond and making responsible agency findings pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), including a statement of overriding considerations. 

 
Item 6B: Discussion, consideration and possible action on an appeal of the Design 

Review and Historic Preservation Commission’s decision to approve the 
application of Glenn Ikemoto for site design and architectural review of a new 
single-family residence, additional residence, and accessory structures at 314-
324 Second Street East.   (Planning Director) 

  Staff Recommendation:  Deny the appeal, thereby upholding the decision of the Design 
Review and Historic Preservation Commission. 

 

7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL 

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the City Council) 
 
Item 7A: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Accept the 2015-16 Annual 

Report of the Sonoma Tourism Improvement District.  (City Manager) 
  Staff Recommendation:  Accept the report. 
 

8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the Council as the Successor Agency) 
 

9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 

10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF 

 

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION  

 Public testimony on closed session item(s) only. 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 4 

13. CLOSED SESSION  

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant to Paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government Code.  Name of case: Selma Blanusa 
v. City of Sonoma, a municipal corporation. 
 

14. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION & REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
I do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board on 
August 11, 2016.   Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of 
business referred to on the agenda are normally available for public inspection the Wednesday 
before each regularly scheduled meeting at City Hall, located at No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA.  
Any documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the 
members of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda has been 
distributed will be made available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office, No. 1 The Plaza, 
Sonoma CA during regular business hours. 
 
If you challenge the action of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described on the agenda, or in 
written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk, at or prior to the public hearing. 
 
In accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk (707) 933-2216. Notification 48-hours 
before the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting.  



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
SS-1 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 
Staff Contact  

Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 
Discussion, consideration and possible direction to staff on housing-related topics presented during the 
May 16, 2016 joint City Council-Planning Commission Study Session 
Summary 
On May 16, the Council held an initial Study Session with the Planning Commission to discuss the 
global issue of affordable housing options and opportunities in the City of Sonoma. As an outcome of 
that meeting, staff has focused on four issues to present for further discussion at this second Study 
Session as follows: 
1. Options on modifying inclusionary housing requirements (Housing Consultant: Keyser-

Marston/KWA). 
2. Housing Impact Fee status report and discussion (Housing Consultant: Keyser-Marston/KWA). 
3. Considerations on prohibiting or further restricting vacation rentals. 
4. Discussion of Junior Second Units and Shared Housing. 
This Study Session envisions presentation by the City’s consultant and staff, discussion between 
Council and Planning Commission and ultimately to provide general direction from which staff can 
proceed with formulating a work plan for any or all of the topics. (Note: subsequent study sessions will 
address additional housing topics.) 
Recommended Council Action 
Provide general direction to staff and/or consultant on the four main topics discussed. 
Alternative Actions 
N.A. 

Financial Impact 
To be determined. 

Environmental Review Status 
   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 
1. Inclusionary requirements/impact fees: 

A. Power Point Presentation (Note: please see question/discussion topics following slide #13) 
B. Draft comparison of inclusionary housing requirements 
C. Draft comparison of housing impact fees 

2. Vacation Rentals: 
A. Memo from City Attorney’s office 
B. List of vacation rentals 

3. Junior Second units and shared housing: 
A. Junior Second Units: Talking points and Novato example 
B. Information on Share Sonoma 
 
 



Alignment with Council Goals: 
The discussion of housing issues relates to the Housing goal, which includes the direction to: 
“Implement strategies to facilitate creation of affordable rental and workforce housing; sustain or 
increase opportunities to continue the programs currently in place to maintain current affordable 
housing stock.” 
Compliance with Climate 2020 Action Plan Target Goals: 
The development of affordable housing will help reduce GHG emissions by reducing vehicle miles 
travelled. 
cc: 



Af
fo
rd
ab
le
	H
ou

sin
g	
Pr
og
ra
m
	U
pd

at
e	
&
	

N
ex
us
	S
tu
di
es

Ci
ty
	o
f	S
on

om
a,
	C
A

Au
gu
st
	1
5,
	2
01
6

Attachment 1A



Go
al
s	f
or
	To

da
y’
s	S

tu
dy
	S
es
sio

n

1.
In
tr
od

uc
e	
th
e	
W
or
k	P

ro
gr
am

2.
Di
sc
us
s	P

ol
icy

	C
on

sid
er
at
io
ns

3.
Lis

te
n	
to
	Yo

ur
	Id
ea
sa

nd
	C
on

ce
rn
s

2



Pu
rp
os
e	
of
	th

e	
Up

da
te

•
Es
ta
bl
ish

	a
	S
tr
on

g	
Le
ga
l	F
ou

nd
at
io
n

•
En

su
re
	P
ro
gr
am

	is
	a
n	
Ef
fe
ct
iv
e	
To
ol
	fo
r	C

re
at
in
g	

Ne
w
	A
ffo

rd
ab
le
	H
ou

sin
g

•
Co

ns
id
er
	E
xp
an
di
ng
	P
ro
gr
am

	to
	In

clu
de

	N
on

-
Re

sid
en

tia
l	U

se
s,	
Sm

al
le
r	R

es
id
en

tia
l	P
ro
je
ct
s

3



W
ho

	W
e	
Ar
e

•
Ka
re
n	
W
ar
ne

r	A
ss
oc
ia
te
s

•
Ci
ty
	o
f	S
on

om
a	
Ho

us
in
g	E

le
m
en

ts
•
Lo
ca
l	H

ou
sin

g	I
ss
ue

s
•
In
cl
us
io
na
ry
	H
ou

sin
g	
Pr
og
ra
m
	D
es
ig
n

•
Ke
ys
er
	M

ar
st
on

	A
ss
oc
ia
te
s

•
Re

al
	E
st
at
e	
Ad

vi
so
ry
	F
irm

•
Ne

xu
s	A

na
ly
sis
	P
io
ne

er
•
Af
fo
rd
ab
le
	H
ou

sin
g	
Pr
og
ra
m
	D
es
ig
n	

4



W
hy
	U
pd

at
e?

•
Ho

us
in
g	
El
em

en
t	P
ro
ce
ss

•
Lo
ss
	o
f	R

ed
ev
el
op

m
en

t	
•
Cr
ea
te
d	
Lo
w,
	V
er
y	
Lo
w
	In

co
m
e	U

ni
ts

•
Pr
ov
id
ed

	R
ev
en

ue
	fo
r	A

ffo
rd
ab
le
	H
ou

sin
g

•
Ch

an
ge
s	i
n	
th
e	
Le
ga
l	E
nv
iro

nm
en

t

5



Le
ga
l	C
on

te
xt

Re
nt
al
s

•
Pa
lm

er
	p
re
cl
ud

es
	re
qu

ire
d	
in
cl
us
io
na
ry
	u
ni
ts
.	A
lte

rn
at
iv
e	
is	

an
	im

pa
ct
	fe
e	
su
pp

or
te
d	
by
	a
	n
ex
us
.	O

ns
ite

	a
s	a

n	
op

tio
n.

•
“P
al
m
er
	fi
x”

(A
B	
25
02
)	i
nt
ro
du

ce
d	
in
	Le

gi
sla

tu
re
	

Fo
r	S
al
e	

•
Sa
n	
Jo
se
	ru

lin
g	
-i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
	re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
	u
ph

el
d.
		U
.S
.	

Su
pr
em

e	
Co

ur
t	d

ec
lin

ed
	to
	re

vi
ew

.		
•

Ne
xu
s	n

ot
	n
ee
de

d	
to
	su

pp
or
t	i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry

•
Ne

xu
s	f
or
	im

pa
ct
	fe
es
	o
n	
sm

al
l	p

ro
je
ct
s	o

r	s
in
gl
e	
un

its
	

•
In
-li
eu

	fe
es
	in

st
ea
d	
of
	im

pa
ct
	fe
es
	fo

r	l
ar
ge
r	p

ro
je
ct
s	(
no

	
ne

xu
s)
.

6



Su
m
m
ar
y	
of
	W

or
k	
Pr
og
ra
m

•
Ev
al
ua
te
	d
em

an
d	
fo
r	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	h
ou

sin
g	g

en
er
at
ed

	b
y	
ne

w
	

re
sid

en
tia

l	a
nd

	n
on

-re
sid

en
tia

l	d
ev
el
op

m
en

t	(
us
in
g	
a	
ne

xu
s	

m
od

el
)	→

	m
ax
im

um
	im

pa
ct
	fe
e	
ob

lig
at
io
ns

•
Ev
al
ua
te
	im

pa
ct
	o
f	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	h
ou

sin
g	o

bl
ig
at
io
ns
	o
n	
th
e	

fin
an
ci
al
	fe
as
ib
ili
ty
	o
f	n

ew
	re

sid
en

tia
l	d
ev
el
op

m
en

t.

•
Re

vi
ew

	C
ity

’s	
In
cl
us
io
na
ry
	P
ro
gr
am

	&
	re

co
m
m
en

d	
up

da
te
s.

•
Re

co
m
m
en

d	
fe
e	
le
ve
ls	
fo
r	n

on
-re

sid
en

tia
l	d
ev
el
op

m
en

t.

7



Re
sid

en
tia

l	N
ex
us
:	C

on
ce
pt

Co
nc
ep

t:	

St
ar
tin

g	
Po

in
t:	
pr
ot
ot
yp
ic
al
	m
ar
ke
t	r
at
e	
un

its
	

•
Re

pr
es
en

t	p
ro
je
ct
s	c
ur
re
nt
ly
	b
ei
ng
	b
ui
lt	
or
	e
xp
ec
te
d	
in
	fu
tu
re

8

Re
sid

en
ts
	in

N
ew

	M
ar
ke
t

Ra
te
	U
ni
ts

N
ew

	D
em

an
d

Fo
r	g

oo
ds
	a
nd
	

Se
rv
ic
es

N
ew

	W
or
ke
rs
:

Re
ta
il,
	R
es
ta
ur
an
t,

O
th
er
	S
er
vi
ce
s

N
ew

	L
ow

er
	In
co
m
e	

Ho
us
eh
ol
ds
	t
ha
t	n

ee
d

Af
fo
rd
ab
le
	H
ou
sin

g	



No
n-
Re

sid
en

tia
l	N

ex
us
:	C

on
ce
pt

Co
nc
ep

t:	
Ne

w
	W

or
kp
la
ce
	B
ui
ld
in
gs
	M
ea
n…

		
è

Ne
w
	jo

bs
,	a
	sh

ar
e	
of
	w
hi
ch
	ar
e	
lo
w
er
	p
ay
in
g	

è
Ne

w
	lo

w
er
	in
co
m
e	
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

è
Ne

w
	d
em

an
d	
fo
r	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	h
ou

sin
g	

St
ar
tin

g	
Po

in
t:	
No

n-
Re

sid
en

tia
l	B
ui
ld
in
g	T

yp
es
	

•
Bu

ild
in
g	t
yp
es
	(r
et
ai
l,	
of
fic
e,
	e
tc
.)	
re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

e	
of
	th

e	
us
es
	

ex
pe

ct
ed

	in
	So

no
m
a	

•
Em

pl
oy
m
en

t	d
en

sit
y	
fa
ct
or
s	(
SF
	p
er
	e
m
pl
oy
ee
)		
	

9

9



Fi
na
nc
ia
l	F
ea
sib

ili
ty

•
Ne

xu
s	A

na
ly
sis
	e
st
ab
lis
he

s	m
ax
im

um
	su

pp
or
ta
bl
e	
fe
e	
le
ve
ls

•
Fi
na
nc
ia
l	F
ea
sib

ili
ty
	A
na
ly
sis
	in
fo
rm

s	a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
	fe
e	
le
ve
ls,

on
sit
e	
ob

lig
at
io
ns

▫
Co

m
pa

re
	re
la
tiv
e	b

ur
de

ns
	b
et
w
ee
n	
po

te
nt
ia
l	o
ns
ite

	o
pt
io
ns

▫
Co

m
pa

re
	re
la
tiv
e	b

ur
de

ns
	o
f	o
ns
ite

	co
m
pl
ia
nc
e	&

	fe
e	
pa

ym
en

t

▫
Ev
al
ua

te
	im

pa
ct
	o
f	p

ro
gr
am

	o
n	
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t	e
co
no

m
ics

10

10



Cu
rr
en

t	I
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
	P
ro
gr
am

•
Pr
oj
ec
ts
	w
ith

	5
+	
un

its
	o
r	p

ar
ce
ls,
	2
0%

	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	to

	M
od

er
at
e	

In
co
m
e	
ho

us
eh

ol
ds
.

•
Pr
oj
ec
ts
	w
ith

	5
-9
	u
ni
ts
/p
ar
ce
ls	
pr
ov
id
e	
on

e	
M
od

er
at
e	
un

it.

•
W
ith

in
	So

no
m
a	
Re

sid
en

tia
l	z
on

in
g	
di
st
ric
t,	
fo
r	p

ro
je
ct
s	w

ith
	

10
+	
un

its
/p
ar
ce
ls,
	a
t	l
ea
st
	5
0%

	o
f	i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
	u
ni
ts
	af
fo
rd
ab
le
	

to
	Lo

w
	In
co
m
e	
ho

us
eh

ol
ds
.

•
No

	in
-li
eu

	fe
e	
op

tio
n.

11

11



Ho
us
in
g	
El
em

en
t	R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
•
Co

ns
id
er
	al
lo
w
in
g	o

ns
ite

	u
ni
ts
	a
t	L
ow

,	w
ith

	re
du

ct
io
n	
in
	p
er
ce
nt

re
qu

ire
d.

•
Co

ns
id
er
	al
lo
w
in
g	p

ro
je
ct
s	t
o	
pa

y	i
n-
lie
u	
fe
e.

•
Co

ns
id
er
	es

ta
bl
ish

in
g	h

ou
sin

g	i
m
pa

ct
	fe
es
	fo

r:
▫
sin

gl
e-
fa
m
ily
	h
om

es
	an

d	
2-
4	
un

it	
pr
oj
ec
ts
,

▫
re
nt
al
	p
ro
je
ct
s,

▫
no

n-
re
sid

en
tia

l	d
ev
el
op

m
en
t.

•
Ad

di
tio

na
l	p
ol
icy

-m
ak
er
	d
isc

us
sio

n:
▫
Cr
ea
te
	in
ce
nt
iv
es
	fo
r	s
m
al
le
r	u

ni
ts

�
Al
lo
w
	se

ni
or
s	t
o	
do

w
ns
iz
e

�
Pr
ov
id
e	
ho

us
in
g	f
or
	w
or
kf
or
ce

�
Pr
ov
id
e	
ho

us
in
g	f
or
	yo

un
g	f
am

ili
es

12

12



Po
lic
y	
Co

ns
id
er
at
io
ns

•
O
ve
rv
ie
w
	o
f	D

ec
isi
on

s	&
	C
on

sid
er
at
io
ns
	fo
r	P

ro
gr
am

	U
pd

at
e

•
Lo
ok
in
g	f
or
	F
ee
db

ac
k	
/	D

isc
us
sio

n

13

13



O
ns
ite

	U
ni
ts
	v
s.	
Fe
e	
Pa
ym

en
t

•
W
ha
t	i
s	t
he

	C
ity

’s	
pr
ef
er
en

ce
	fo

r	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	u
ni
ts
	p
ro
vi
de

d
on

sit
e	
ve
rs
us
	p
ay
m
en

t	o
f	f
ee
?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
Fe
e	
$	
ca
n	
be

	le
ve
ra
ge
d.

▫
Fe
e	
$	
ca
n	
be

	u
se
d	
to
	re

ac
h	
lo
w
er
	in
co
m
e	
le
ve
ls.

▫
O
ns
ite

	o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
	sc
at
te
r	u

ni
ts
	th

ro
ug
ho

ut
	C
ity
,	p

ro
je
ct
s.

▫
Ti
m
in
g	-

O
ns
ite

	o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
	cr
ea
te
	af
fo
rd
ab
le
	u
ni
ts
	at
	sa

m
e	
tim

e
as
	m
ar
ke
t	r
at
e	
un

its
.	F
ee
-b
as
ed

	p
ro
gr
am

s	c
re
at
e	u

ni
ts
	la
te
r.

▫
Fi
nd

in
g	s

ite
s	f
or
	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	h
ou

sin
g	i
s	c
ha

lle
ng
in
g.

▫
Ad

m
in
ist
ra
tiv
e	b

ur
de

n	i
s	d

iff
er
en

t.

14

14



In
co
m
e	
Ta
rg
et
s

•
Ho

w
	w
ill
	C
ity

	m
ee
t	t
he

	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	h
ou

sin
g	n

ee
ds
	fo

r	r
an
ge
	o
f	

in
co
m
e	
le
ve
ls	
(E
xt
re
m
el
y	
Lo
w,
	V
er
y	
Lo
w,
	Lo

w,
	M

od
er
at
e)
?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
In
clu

sio
na

ry
	p
ro
gr
am

	cu
rr
en

tly
	ta
rg
et
s	M

od
er
at
e	I
nc
om

e	u
ni
ts
.

▫
W
ith

	lo
ss
	o
f	r
ed

ev
el
op

m
en
t,	
Ci
ty
	n
o	
lo
ng
er
	h
as
	fu

nd
in
g	s
ou

rc
e	

fo
r	l
ow

er
	in
co
m
e	
ho

us
in
g	n

ee
ds
.

▫
Lo
w
er
	in
co
m
e	
un

its
	a
re
	m
or
e	b

ur
de

ns
om

e	f
or
	d
ev
el
op

er
.

▫
Co

ns
id
er
	u
sin

g	f
ee
	re

ve
nu

es
	to
	a
ss
ist
	lo
w
er
	in
co
m
e	
le
ve
ls,
	a
nd

	
le
ve
ra
ge
	ta
x	c

re
di
t	f
in
an

cin
g.

15

15



Th
re
sh
ol
ds
	&
	F
ee
s

•
W
ha
t	a

dj
us
tm

en
ts
	sh

ou
ld
	b
e	
m
ad
e	
to
	th

re
sh
ol
ds
	in
	th

e	
in
cl
us
io
na
ry
	p
ro
gr
am

?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
Cu

rr
en

t	p
ro
gr
am

	re
qu

ire
s	o

ns
ite

	fo
r	5

+	
un

its
.	N

o	
fe
e	
op

tio
n.

▫
Th

re
sh
ol
d	
fo
r	F
ee
	P
ay
m
en

t
�

In
cl
ud

e	
si
ng
le
	u
ni
t	p

ro
je
ct
s?

�
Tw

o	
un

its
?

▫
Th

re
sh
ol
d	
fo
r	B

ui
ld
	R
eq

ui
re
m
en

t	(
O
w
ne

rs
hi
p	U

ni
ts
	O
nl
y)

�
Fr
eq

ue
nt
ly
	ti
ed

	to
	o
ns
ite

	p
er
ce
nt
ag
e	
(2
0%

	o
f	5
	u
ni
ts
	=
	1
	u
ni
t)

�
Hi
gh
er
	th

re
sh
ol
d	
–
m
or
e	
pr
oj
ec
ts
	p
ay
in
g	f
ee
.

▫
Re

la
tio

ns
hi
p	
be

tw
ee
n	
fe
e	
le
ve
l	a
nd

	o
ns
ite

	re
qu

ire
m
en

t

16

16



Fe
e	
St
ru
ct
ur
e

•
Ho

w
	d
oe

s	t
he

	C
ity

	w
an
t	t
o	
st
ru
ct
ur
e	
a	
re
sid

en
tia

l	i
m
pa
ct
	fe
e?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
Im

pa
ct
	fe
es
	a
re
	re
qu

ire
d	
fo
r	r
en

ta
l	p
ro
je
ct
s	&

	sm
al
l	f
or
-s
al
e	

pr
oj
ec
ts
	(w

he
re
	o
ns
ite

	is
	n
ot
	a
n	
op

tio
n)
.

▫
Fe
es
	a
re
	ty
pi
ca
lly
	a
ss
es
se
d	
on

	a	
‘p
er
	sq

ua
re
	fo
ot
’	o
r	‘
pe

r	u
ni
t’	

ba
sis

,	f
or
	al
l	m

ar
ke
t	r
at
e	
un

its
.

�
Al
te
rn
at
iv
es
	in
cl
ud

es
	‘p
er
	a
ffo

rd
ab

le
	u
ni
t	o

w
ed

’	a
nd

	‘p
er
ce
nt
	o
f	

m
ar
ke
t	s
al
es
	p
ric
e.
’

▫
‘P
er
	S
qu

ar
e	F

oo
t’	
fe
es
	a
llo
w
	fo
r	l
ow

er
	fe
es
	fo

r	s
m
al
le
r	u

ni
ts
	a
nd

	
hi
gh
er
	fe
es
	fo

r	l
ar
ge
r	u

ni
ts
.	

▫
Im

pa
ct
	fe
es
	ch

ar
ge
d	
‘p
er
	sq

ua
re
	fo
ot
’	c
an

	b
e	
ap

pl
ie
d	
to
	

ad
di
tio

ns
	an

d	
re
pl
ac
em

en
ts
	w
ith

	n
et
	n
ew

	fl
oo

r	a
re
a.

17

17



De
ve
lo
pe

r	I
nc
en

tiv
es

•
W
ha
t	i
nc
en

tiv
es
	w
ou

ld
	th

e	
Ci
ty
	p
ro
vi
de

	to
	e
nc
ou

ra
ge
	o
ns
ite

un
its
?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
Th

e	
Ci
ty
	ca

n	
pr
ov
id
e	i
nc
en

tiv
es
	th

at
	re

du
ce
	th

e	
co
st
	o
f	p

ro
vi
di
ng

un
its
	o
ns
ite

.
▫

Ty
pi
ca
l	in

ce
nt
iv
es
	in
clu

de
:

�
Fa
st
	tr
ac
k	
pr
oc
es
si
ng

�
De

si
gn
	fl
ex
ib
ili
ty
	fo
r	a
ffo

rd
ab
le
	u
ni
ts
	(r
ed

uc
ed

	u
ni
t	s
iz
es
,	l
es
se
r	

in
te
rio

r	f
in
is
he

s)
�

Fe
e	
De

fe
rr
al
s	/
	w
ai
ve
rs

�
O
ffs
ite

	so
lu
tio

ns
	(e
.g
.,	
ap

ar
tm

en
t	u

ni
ts
	in
st
ea
d	
of
	si
ng
le
	fa
m
ily
	

ho
m
es
)

▫
St
at
e	
De

ns
ity
	B
on

us
	La

w
18

18



O
rd
in
an
ce
	E
xe
m
pt
io
ns
	/	
Di
sc
ou

nt
s

•
W
ha

t	e
xe
m
pt
io
ns
	o
r	d

isc
ou

nt
s	s
ho

ul
d	
th
e	
Ci
ty
	h
av
e	
in
	th

e	
in
clu

sio
na

ry
	p
ro
gr
am

?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
Ex
em

pt
io
ns
/d
isc
ou

nt
s	c
an

	h
el
p	
ac
hi
ev
e	
po

lic
y	o

bj
ec
tiv

es
.

▫
O
pt
io
ns
	fo
r	e
xe
m
pt
io
ns
	in
cl
ud

e:
�

G
eo
gr
ap
hi
c	
ar
ea
s	

�
De

ed
	r
es
tr
ic
te
d	
af
fo
rd
ab
le
	h
ou

si
ng

�
Se
co
nd

	u
ni
ts

�
Fa
rm

w
or
ke
r	u

ni
ts

�
Sm

al
l	a
dd

iti
on

s	(
e.
g.
,	l
es
s	
th
an
	X
	s
f)

�
Re
pl
ac
em

en
t	
un

its
	w
ith

	sm
al
l	a
m
ou

nt
	o
f	n

et
	n
ew

	fl
oo

r	a
re
a.

▫
Di
sc
ou

nt
s

�
M
ar
ke
t	b

as
ed
,	e
.g
.,	
re
nt
al
s.

�
Ph

as
e-
in
	p
er
io
ds

19

19



Se
co
nd

s	U
ni
ts

•
Ho

w
	d
o	
Se
co
nd

	U
ni
ts
	fi
t	i
nt
o	
th
e	
pr
og
ra
m
?

•
Co

ns
id
er
:

▫
O
pt
io
ns
	in
clu

de
:

�
Ca

n	
sa
tis
fy
	o
ns
ite

	in
cl
us
io
na

ry
	o
bl
ig
at
io
n

�
Ca

nn
ot
	sa

tis
fy
	o
ns
ite

	o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
,	b
ut
	a
re
	e
xe
m
pt
	fr
om

	fe
e

�
Ar
e	
ch
ar
ge
d	
a	
fe
e,
	u
nl
es
s	d

ee
d	
re
st
ric
te
d	
an

d	
re
nt
ed

	o
ut
.

▫
Un

its
	d
o	
co
un

t	t
ow

ar
d	
RH

NA
	o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
.

▫
Cr
ea
te
	a
dd

iti
on

al
	u
ni
ts
	th
at
	se

rv
e	
sm

al
l	h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,	
no

t
fa
m
ili
es
.

20

20



W
ra
p	
U
p	
&
	N
ex
t	S

te
ps

21





CI
TY

 O
F 
SO

N
O
M
A 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
PR

O
G
RA

M
 R
EV

IE
W
 

CO
M
PA

RI
SO

N
 O
F 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
H
O
U
SI
N
G
 P
RO

G
RA

M
S 
‐ D

RA
FT
 

So
no

m
a 
(C
ity

)
So

no
m
a

(C
ou

nt
y)
 

Cl
ov

er
da

le
H
ea

ld
sb
ur
g

Pe
ta
lu
m
a

Sa
nt
a 
Ro

sa
Se

ba
st
op

ol
 

M
in
. P

ro
je
ct
 S
iz
e 

Fo
r I
m
pa

ct
 (o

r I
n‐
Li
eu

) F
ee

 
Fo

r  
Bu

ild
in
g 
Af
fo
rd
. U

ni
ts
  

n/
a 

5+
 u
ni
ts
 

1 
un

it 
n/
a 

FS
: 5

‐1
5 
un

its
 

5+
 u
ni
ts
 

1 
un

it 
7+

 u
ni
ts
 

5+
 u
ni
ts
 

n/
a 

1 
un

it 
n/
aa

 
n/
a 

3+
 u
ni
ts
 

Fo
r‐
Sa
le
 O
ns
ite

 R
eq

ui
re
m
en

t 
%
 A
ff
or
da

bl
e 
U
ni
ts
 

Q
ua

lif
yi
ng

 In
co
m
e 
Le
ve

l 
20

%
a 

Lo
w
 &
 M

od
b   

20
%
 

1/
2 
Lo
w
, 1
/2
 M

od
 

15
%
 

M
od

er
at
e 

15
%

a 

2/
3 
VL

&
Lo
w
,1
/3
 M

od
 

15
%
 

Lo
w
 &
 M

od
 

N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

b 
20

%
 

Lo
w
 

Re
nt
al
 Im

pa
ct
 F
ee

 
N
o 

Ye
sa

N
ot
 c
ur
re
nt
ly

a
N
ot
 c
ur
re
nt
ly

b
In
‐L
ie
u 
Fe
ea

Ye
s

N
o

Re
nt
al
 O
ns
ite

 O
pt
io
n 

%
 A
ff
or
da

bl
e 
U
ni
ts
 

Q
ua

lif
yi
ng

 In
co
m
e 
Le
ve

l 
20

%
a 

Lo
w
 &
 M

od
b  

15
%

b 

Ve
ry
 L
ow

 &
 L
ow

 
15

%
 

Lo
w
 

N
ot
 c
ur
re
nt
ly

b 
15

%
 

Ve
ry
 L
ow

 &
 L
ow

 
15

%
 

Lo
w
 

20
%
 

Lo
w
 

Im
pa

ct
/I
n‐
Li
eu

 F
ee

 
N
o 
fe
e 
op

tio
n

Sl
id
in
g 
sc
al
e:

1,
00

0 
sf
 =
 

$2
,1
98

/u
ni
t 

>4
,4
00

 sf
 =
 $
7.
57

/s
f

FS
:1

5%
 o
f 

di
ffe

re
nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

af
fo
rd
ab

le
 a
nd

 
m
ar
ke
t p

ric
e 

Sl
id
in
g 
sc
al
e:

1,
30

0 
sf
 =
 $
2,
45

5 
≥2

,3
00

 sf
 =
 $
15

,0
00

 

Sl
id
in
g 
sc
al
e:

64
0 
sf
 =
 $
2,
40

0 
≥4

,0
00

 sf
 =
 $
22

,5
00

 

FS
:2

.5
%
 sa

le
s 

pr
ic
e 

R:
 S
lid

in
g 
Sc
al
e 

<9
10

 sf
 =
 $
1/
sf
 

≥1
,8
90

 sf
 =
 

$1
2,
71

2 

Fe
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
fo
r 

fr
ac
tio

na
l 

un
its
 o
nl
y.
 

Fe
e 
fo
r A

dd
iti
on

s/
Re

pl
ac
em

en
ts
 

N
o 

Ye
s  
  1
,0
00

+ 
sf

N
o

Ye
s  
  1
,3
00

+ 
sf

N
o

N
o

N
o

Fr
ac
tio

na
l U

ni
ts
 

N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

 
Ad

d'
l u
ni
t, 
2n

d 
un

it,
 

or
 fa

rm
w
or
ke
r u

ni
t 

FS
:F
ra
ct
io
na

l f
ee

or
 a
dd

'l 
un

it 
R:
 <
0.
5=

no
 u
ni
t 

≥0
.5
=a
dd

'l 
un

it 

Fr
ac
tio

na
l f
ee

 o
r 

ad
d'
l u
ni
t 

N
eg
ot
ia
te
d 
on

 
pr
oj
ec
t‐
by

‐p
ro
je
ct
 

ba
sis

. 

Fr
ac
tio

na
l f
ee

 
or
 a
dd

'l 
un

it 
Fr
ac
tio

na
l 

fe
e 
or
 a
dd

'l 
un

it 

Al
te
rn
at
iv
es
 to

 O
ns
ite

 U
ni
ts
 

Fe
e 
O
pt
io
n 

La
nd

 D
ed

ic
at
io
n 

O
ff
si
te
 U
ni
ts
 

O
th
er
  

Cu
rr
en

tly
 n
ot
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

c 
Ye

s (
De

ve
lo
pe

r)
   
 

Ye
s (
Co

un
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Co

un
ty
) 

Pr
ic
e 
re
st
ric

tio
ns
 o
n 

ex
ist
in
g 
du

s (
Co

) 

FS
: 5

‐1
5 
du

s 
Ye

s (
Ci
ty
) 

< 
7 
du

s (
De

ve
lo
pe

r)
 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Ye
s (
De

ve
lo
pe

r)
 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Al
te
rn
at
iv
e 

m
et
ho

ds
 (C

ity
) 

Ye
s (
De

ve
lo
pe

r)
 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Al
te
rn
at
iv
es
 

on
ly
 If
 

on
sit
e 

in
fe
as
ib
le
 

(C
ity

) 
In
cl
us
io
na

ry
 U
ni
t S

ta
nd

ar
ds
 

Sm
al
le
r U

ni
ts
 

Le
ss
er
 In

te
rio

r F
in
is
he

s 
O
th
er
 

N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

 in
 

O
rd
in
an

ce
, y
et
 

in
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
Ci
ty
 

al
lo
w
s m

od
ifi
ed

 
st
an

da
rd
s 

(s
ub

je
ct
 to

 P
C 

ap
pr
ov

al
) 

↓
flo

or
 a
re
a 
≤ 
25

%
 

Ye
s 

2n
d 
un

its
 a
nd

 
fa
rm

w
or
ke
r u

ni
ts
 

m
ay
 fu

lfi
ll 

in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 rq

m
nt
. 

Ye
sb

 

Ye
s 

In
 sm

al
l F
S 

pr
oj
ec
ts
, 2

nd
 

un
its
 m

ay
 fu

lfi
ll 

rq
m
nt
.  

Ye
sc

 

Ye
s 

2n
d 
un

its
 c
an

 n
ot
 

fu
lfi
ll 
in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 

re
qu

ire
m
en

t. 

N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

 
N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

 
Ye

sa
 

Ye
s 

O
th
er
 C
on

ce
ss
io
ns
/ 

In
ce
nt
iv
es
 

Pe
r s
ta
te
 

de
ns
ity

 b
on

us
 

Pr
io
rit
y
pr
oc
es
sin

g;
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t 

pr
ef
er
en

ce
 in

 P
DA

; 
↓
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t 

st
an

da
rd
s 

Pe
r s
ta
te
 d
en

sit
y 

bo
nu

s 
Pe

r s
ta
te
 d
en

sit
y 

bo
nu

s 
Ho

us
in
g 
fu
nd

s f
or
 

sit
e 
ac
qu

isi
tio

n,
 p
re
‐

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t, 
et
c;
 

↓
fe
es
; f
as
t‐
tr
ac
k 

pr
oc
es
sin

g 

Pe
r s
ta
te
 

de
ns
ity

 b
on

us
 

Pe
r s
ta
te
 

de
ns
ity

 
bo

nu
s 

Attachment 1B



CI
TY

 O
F 
SO

N
O
M
A 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
PR

O
G
RA

M
 R
EV

IE
W
 

CO
M
PA

RI
SO

N
 O
F 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
H
O
U
SI
N
G
 P
RO

G
RA

M
S 
‐ D

RA
FT
 

N
ap

a 
 

(C
ity

) 
N
ap

a
(C
ou

nt
y)
 

St
. H

el
en

a

M
in
. P

ro
je
ct
 S
iz
e 

Fo
r I
m
pa

ct
 (o

r I
n‐
Li
eu

) F
ee

 
Fo

r  
Bu

ild
in
g 
Af
fo
rd
. U

ni
ts
  

1 
un

it 
n/
a 

1 
un

it 
5+

 u
ni
ts
 (f
or
‐s
al
e)
 

1 
un

it 
5+

 u
ni
ts
 

Fo
r‐
Sa
le
 O
ns
ite

 R
eq

ui
re
m
en

t 
%
 A
ff
or
da

bl
e 
U
ni
ts
 

In
co
m
e 
Le
ve
l 

n/
a 

20
%
 S
F 
De

ta
ch
ed

 
17

%
 S
F 
At
ta
ch
ed

 &
 C
om

m
on

 
in
te
re
st
 p
ro
je
ct
s 

M
od

er
at
e 

20
%
 

1/
2 
M
ed

ia
n,
 1
/2
 M

od
a 

Re
nt
al
 Im

pa
ct
 F
ee

 
Ye

s 
Ye

s
In
‐L
ie
u 
Fe
e

Re
nt
al
 O
ns
ite

 O
pt
io
n 

%
 A
ff
or
da

bl
e 
U
ni
ts
 

In
co
m
e 
Le
ve
l 

n/
a 

12
%
 

Lo
w
 

20
%
  

VL
/L
ow

/M
od

b  c
on

sis
te
nt
 w
ith

 
in
co
m
e 
ra
tio

 in
 C
ity

's 
RH

N
A 

Im
pa

ct
/I
n‐
Li
eu

 F
ee

 
Re

nt
al
: $

4.
05

/s
fa

Co
nd

o:
 $
4.
75

/s
fa 

Si
ng

le
‐F
am

ily
: $

4.
75

/s
fa 

Re
nt
al
: $

5.
50

/s
f

Fo
r‐
Sa
le
:  

12
00

‐2
00

0 
sf
=$

9.
00

/s
f 

20
01

‐3
00

0 
sf
=$

10
.7
5/
sf
 

>
30

00
 sf
 =
 $
12

.2
5

2.
5%

 o
f p

ro
je
ct
 v
al
ua

tio
nc

Fe
e 
fo
r A

dd
iti
on

s/
Re

pl
ac
em

en
ts
 

N
o 

N
o

Ye
s  
  8
50

+ 
sf

Fr
ac
tio

na
l U

ni
ts
 

n/
a 

Fr
ac
tio

na
l f
ee

 o
r a

dd
'l 
un

it
Fr
ac
tio

na
l f
ee

, a
dd

'l 
un

it,
 o
r 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
eq

ui
va
le
nt
 a
ct
io
n 

Al
te
rn
at
iv
es
 to

 O
ns
ite

 U
ni
ts
 

Fe
e 
O
pt
io
n 

La
nd

 D
ed

ic
at
io
n 

O
ff
si
te
 U
ni
ts
 

O
th
er
  

Al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
eq

ui
va
le
nt
 

pr
op

os
al
 (C

ity
) b

 

FS
: <

 5
 u
ni
ts
 (D

ev
el
op

er
) 

Ye
s (
Co

un
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Co

un
ty
) 

Al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
eq

ui
va
le
nt
 a
ct
io
n 

(C
ou

nt
y)
 

< 
5 
du

s (
De

ve
lo
pe

r)
 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Ye
s (
Ci
ty
) 

Pr
ic
e 
re
st
ric

tio
ns
 o
n 
ex
ist
in
g 
du

s 
(C
ity

) 
In
cl
us
io
na

ry
 U
ni
t S

ta
nd

ar
ds
 

Sm
al
le
r U

ni
ts
 

Le
ss
er
 In

te
rio

r F
in
is
he

s 
O
th
er
 

n/
a 

Ye
sa

 

Ye
s 

Al
lo
w
an

ce
 fo

r a
tt
ac
he

d 
un

its
 

in
 S
F 
de

ta
ch
ed

 p
ro
je
ct
 

Ye
sd

 

Ye
s 

O
th
er
 C
on

ce
ss
io
ns
/ 

In
ce
nt
iv
es
 

N
ot
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

Pr
io
rit
y 
pr
oc
es
sin

g;
 w
ai
ve
r 

bl
dg

 p
er
m
it 
fe
e;
 c
on

ce
ss
io
ns
/  

in
ce
nt
iv
es
 p
er
 st
at
e 
de

ns
ity

 
bo

nu
s 

Pr
io
rit
y 
pr
oj
ec
t p

ro
ce
ss
in
g;
 fe

e 
de

fe
rr
al
s;
 c
on

ce
ss
io
ns
/ i
nc
en

tiv
es
 

pe
r s
ta
te
 d
en

sit
y 
bo

nu
s 



CI
TY

 O
F 
SO

N
O
M
A 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
PR

O
G
RA

M
 R
EV

IE
W
 

CO
M
PA

RI
SO

N
 O
F 
IN
CL
U
SI
O
N
AR

Y 
H
O
U
SI
N
G
 P
RO

G
RA

M
S 
‐ D

RA
FT
 

N
ot
es
: 

1.
Th

is 
ch
ar
t p

re
se
nt
s a

n 
ov

er
vi
ew

 o
f s
el
ec
te
d 
in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 p
ro
gr
am

s i
n 
So

no
m
a 
an

d 
N
ap

a 
co
un

tie
s.
  R

ef
er
 to

 C
ity

 c
od

es
 fo

r m
or
e 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
de

ta
ils
.

2.
M
od

er
at
e 
in
co
m
e 
= 
12

0%
 A
re
a 
M
ed

ia
n 
In
co
m
e 
(A
M
I),
  M

ed
ia
n 
in
co
m
e 
= 
10

0%
 A
M
I, 
Lo
w
 in

co
m
e 
= 
80

%
 A
M
I, 
Ve

ry
 lo

w
 in

co
m
e 
= 
50

%
 A
M
I, 
Ex
tr
em

el
y 
lo
w
 in

co
m
e 
= 
30

%
 A
M
I.

3.
U
nd

er
 "
Al
te
rn
at
iv
es
 to

 O
ns
ite

 U
ni
ts
",
 (D

ev
el
op

er
) a

nd
 (C

ity
) r
ef
er
 to

 w
hi
ch
 e
nt
ity

 h
as
 d
isc

re
tio

n.
4.

Ab
br
ev
ia
tio

ns
:  
FS
 =
 F
or
 S
al
e 
   
 R
 =
 R
en

ta
l  
   
SQ

 =
 S
qu

ar
e 
Fe
et
   
  N

/A
 =
 N
ot
 A
pp

lic
ab

le

Ju
ris

di
ct
io
n‐
sp
ec
ifi
c 
N
ot
es
: 

So
no

m
a 
(c
ity

): 
a 
In
 5
‐9
 u
ni
t p

ro
je
ct
s,
 1
 in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 u
ni
t i
s r
eq

ui
re
d.
 b 
In
 S
on

om
a 
Re

sid
en

tia
l D

ist
ric

t, 
at
 le
as
t h

al
f o

f i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 u
ni
ts
 m

us
t b

e 
af
fo
rd
ab

le
 to

 lo
w
 in
co
m
e 

ho
us
eh

ol
ds
. c
 W

hi
le
 o
ff‐
sit
e 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
no

t s
pe

ci
fie

d 
in
 O
rd
in
an

ce
, o

cc
as
io
na

lly
 d
on

e 
in
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
(e
.g
. 9

 a
pa

rt
m
en

t u
ni
ts
 p
er
m
itt
ed

 to
 fu

lfi
ll 
in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 o
bl
ig
at
io
n 
of
 T
ar
as
sa
 

(E
as
ts
id
e 
Es
ta
te
s I
II)
 su

bd
iv
isi
on

.  
So

no
m
a 
(c
ou

nt
y)
: a

  R
en

ta
l p

ro
je
ct
s h

av
e 
op

tio
n 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 fe
w
er
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 (1

0%
), 
bu

t w
ith

 d
ee

pe
r i
nc
om

e 
ta
rg
et
in
g 
(e
xt
re
m
el
y 
lo
w
 a
nd

 v
er
y 
lo
w
 in

co
m
e)
.  

b 
To

 d
at
e,
 n
o 

re
nt
al
 im

pa
ct
 fe

es
 h
av
e 
be

en
 c
ol
le
ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

un
ty
. A

ll 
re
nt
al
 p
ro
je
ct
s h

av
e 
in
vo

lv
ed

 so
m
e 
so
rt
 o
f d

en
sit
y 
bo

nu
s,
 g
en

er
al
 p
la
n 
am

en
dm

en
t o

r f
un

di
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 
co
un

ty
, a
nd

 
th
us
 a
ll 
ha

ve
 in
cl
ud

ed
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 o
n 
sit
e 
at
 th

e 
de

ve
lo
pe

r's
 in

iti
at
iv
e.
 C
ou

nt
y 
of
fe
rs
 b
y‐
rig

ht
 1
00

%
 d
en

sit
y 
bo

nu
s o

n 
m
ul
ti‐
fa
m
ily
 zo

ne
d 
la
nd

 in
 e
xc
ha

ng
e 
fo
r 4

0%
 v
er
y 
lo
w
 

an
d 
lo
w
 in
co
m
e 
un

its
, w

hi
ch
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
w
id
el
y 
ut
ili
ze
d 
by
 d
ev
el
op

er
s o

f r
en

ta
l h

ou
sin

g.
 

Cl
ov

er
da

le
:  

a 
  A
do

pt
ed

 H
ou

sin
g 
El
em

en
t i
nc
lu
de

s a
 p
ro
gr
am

 to
 re

vi
se
 th

e 
cu
rr
en

t i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 p
ro
gr
am

 to
 a
dd

re
ss
 re

ce
nt
 c
ou

rt
 d
ec
isi
on

s,
 a
nd

 to
 e
nc
ou

ra
ge
 c
ha

ng
es
 to

 
en

co
ur
ag
e 
fe
e 
pa

ym
en

t a
s a

 fo
rm

 o
f c
om

pl
ia
nc
e;
 C
ity

 in
 p
ro
ce
ss
 o
f b

rin
gi
ng

 o
n 
co
ns
ul
ta
nt
 to

 c
on

du
ct
 n
ex
us
 st
ud

y.
  b

  B
ed

ro
om

 m
ix
 o
f i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 u
ni
ts
 m

us
t b

e 
in
 sa

m
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of
 m

ar
ke
t u

ni
ts
 in
 p
ro
je
ct
. 

H
ea

ld
sb
ur
g:
  a

  C
ity

's 
ad

op
te
d 
Ho

us
in
g 
Ac

tio
n 
Pl
an

 (J
ul
y 
20

16
)  e
st
ab

lis
he

s "
pr
io
rit
y 
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

n"
 to

 in
cr
ea
se
 th

e 
in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
ro
m
 1
5%

 to
 3
0%

; s
ta
ff 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

in
iti
al
 w
or
k 
on

 O
rd
in
an

ce
 re

vi
sio

ns
, p

ro
po

sin
g 
th
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 
af
fo
rd
ab

ili
ty
 ta

rg
et
s:
 7
.5
%
 L
ow

 in
co
m
e,
 7
.5
%
 M

od
er
at
e 
in
co
m
e,
 1
5%

 M
id
dl
e 
in
co
m
e 
(1
20

‐1
60

%
 A
M
I).
  b

  P
ur
su
an

t t
o 

cu
rr
en

t c
as
e 
la
w
,  C
ity

 d
oe

s n
ot
 im

po
se
 in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o
n 
re
nt
al
 p
ro
je
ct
s.
 H
ow

ev
er
, H

ou
sin

g 
Ac

tio
n 
Pl
an

 in
cl
ud

es
 re

co
m
m
en

da
tio

n 
to
 p
re
pa

re
 a
 n
ex
us
‐b
as
ed

 im
pa

ct
 

fe
e 
st
ud

y 
an

d 
ad

op
t a

 H
ou

sin
g 
Im

pa
ct
 F
ee

 O
rd
in
an

ce
 to

 re
qu

ire
 re

nt
al
 h
ou

sin
g 
co
nt
rib

ut
e 
to
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h
ou

sin
g.
  c

  In
 p
ro
je
ct
s w

ith
 1
0+

 in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 u
ni
ts
, a
 m

in
im

um
 o
f 1

0%
 

m
us
t h

av
e 
3 
be

dr
oo

m
s.
  

Pe
ta
lu
m
a:
  a

   In
cl
us
io
na

ry
 h
ou

sin
g 
re
qu

ire
m
en

t b
as
ed

 H
ou

sin
g 
El
em

en
t P

ro
gr
am

 4
.3
; C

ity
 d
oe

s n
ot
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 h
av
e 
an

 in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 h
ou

sin
g 
or
di
na

nc
e.
  C

ity
 H
ou

sin
g 
st
af
f i
nd

ic
at
e 

Ci
ty
 is
 lo

ok
in
g 
at
 a
do

pt
in
g 
Ho

us
in
g 
Im

pa
ct
 F
ee

s.
  

Sa
nt
a 
Ro

sa
: a

  D
ev
el
op

er
s o

f p
ro
je
ct
s w

ith
 7
0+

 u
ni
ts
 a
re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to
 c
on

sid
er
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 o
n‐
sit
e 
un

its
, r
at
he

r t
ha

n 
pa

yi
ng

 th
e 
in
‐li
eu

 fe
e.
  b
 In

 Ju
ne

 2
01

6,
 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a
 

Ho
us
in
g 
Ac

tio
n 
Pl
an

, w
ith

 d
ire

ct
io
n 
to
 m

od
ify

 th
e 
Af
fo
rd
ab

le
 H
ou

sin
g 
(In

cl
us
io
na

ry
) O

rd
in
an

ce
 to

: r
eq

ui
re
 in

cl
us
io
na

ry
 u
ni
ts
 in

 fo
r‐
sa
le
 h
ou

sin
g 
pr
oj
ec
ts
, p

ro
vi
de

 in
ce
nt
iv
es
 fo

r 
in
cl
us
io
na

ry
 u
ni
ts
, a
nd

 to
 in
cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ho

us
in
g 
im

pa
ct
 fe

es
. 

Se
ba

st
op

ol
: a

   B
ed

ro
om

 m
ix
 o
f i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 u
ni
ts
 sh

ou
ld
 b
e 
co
m
pa

ra
bl
e 
to
 m

ar
ke
t u

ni
ts
 in
 p
ro
je
ct
, a
nd

 c
om

pl
y 
w
ith

 th
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 
m
in
. u

ni
t s
iz
es
: 0

‐1
 b
dr
m
 =
 6
00

 sf
, 2

 b
dr
m
 =
 7
50

 
sf
, 3

 b
dr
m
 =
 9
00

 sf
, 4

 b
dr
m
 =
 1
,2
00

 sf
. 

N
ap

a 
(c
ity

): 
 a 

  R
ef
le
ct
s u

pd
at
ed

 fe
es
 a
do

pt
ed

 in
 2
01

6,
 to

 b
e 
ph

as
ed

 in
 b
y 
Ja
nu

ar
y 
20

17
.  

b 
In
 2
01

2,
 th

e 
Ci
ty
 a
m
en

de
d 
its
 In

cl
us
io
na

ry
 H
ou

sin
g 
O
rd
in
an

ce
 to

 a
n 
Af
fo
rd
ab

le
 H
ou

sin
g 

Im
pa

ct
 F
ee

 O
rd
in
an

ce
.  
As
 a
n 
al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
to
 p
ay
m
en

t o
f a

n 
im

pa
ct
 fe

e,
 re

sid
en

tia
l d

ev
el
op

m
en

t  
m
ay
 p
ro
po

se
 a
n 
al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
eq

ui
va
le
nt
 a
ct
io
n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
of
 

af
fo
rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 o
n‐
 o
r o

ff‐
sit
e,
 la
nd

 d
ed

ic
at
io
n,
 p
ro
vi
sio

n 
of
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 re

nt
al
 u
ni
ts
, c
on

ve
rs
io
n 
of
 m

ar
ke
t r
at
e 
un

its
 to

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 o
w
ne

rs
hi
p 
un

its
, p

re
se
rv
at
io
n 
of
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

un
its
 a
t r
isk

 o
f l
os
s,
 o
r o

th
er
 m

ea
ns
 c
on

sis
te
nt
 w
ith

 th
e 
Ho

us
in
g 
El
em

en
t. 
  

N
ap

a 
(c
ou

nt
y)
:  

a 
Be

dr
oo

m
 m

ix
 o
f i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 u
ni
ts
 m

us
t b

e 
in
 sa

m
e 
pr
op

or
tio

n 
of
 m

ar
ke
t u

ni
ts
 in

 p
ro
je
ct
. 

St
 H
el
en

a:
 a 
Fo

r‐
sa
le
 p
ro
je
ct
s o

pt
in
g 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 1
0%

 L
ow

 in
co
m
e 
ra
th
er
 th

an
 1
0%

 M
ed

ia
n 
in
co
m
e 
un

its
 a
re
 e
lig
ib
le
 fo

r a
 5
%
 d
en

sit
y 
bo

nu
s,
 o
r o

th
er
 in
ce
nt
iv
e 
of
 e
qu

iv
al
en

t 
fin

an
ci
al
 v
al
ue

.  b
   R
en

ta
l p

ro
je
ct
s r
eq

ui
re
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 <
 4
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 sh

al
l a
dh

er
e 
to
 th

e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
st
an

da
rd
s:
 1
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
t =

 v
er
y 
lo
w
 in

co
m
e;
 2
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 

= 
1 
ve
ry
 lo

w
, 1

 lo
w
 in

co
m
e;
 3
 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 u
ni
ts
 =
 1
 v
er
y 
lo
w
, 1

 lo
w
, 1

 m
od

er
at
e 
in
co
m
e.
  c

   P
ro
je
ct
 v
al
ua

tio
n 
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
ed

 b
as
ed

 o
n 
es
tim

at
ed

 p
er
 sq

ua
re
 fo

ot
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
co
st
s (
as
 

es
ta
bl
ish

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
Ci
ty
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
de

pa
rt
m
en

t)
, m

ul
tip

lie
d 
by

 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t s
qu

ar
e 
fo
ot
ag
e 
(m

in
us
 th

e 
ga
ra
ge
 fl
oo

r a
re
a)

   
d B
ed

ro
om

 m
ix
 o
f i
nc
lu
sio

na
ry
 u
ni
ts
 m

us
t b

e 
in
 sa

m
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of
 m

ar
ke
t u

ni
ts
 in
 p
ro
je
ct
. 





Ke
ys

er
 M

ar
st

on
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c,
; \

\S
F-

FS
2\

w
p\

19
\1

93
31

\0
02

\N
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ee
s c

ha
rt

; 8
/9

/2
01

6

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
JO

BS
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

IN
KA

G
E 

FE
E 

PR
O

G
RA

M
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

DR
AF

T

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n

Yr
. A

do
pt

ed
/

U
pd

at
ed

Th
re

sh
ol

ds
 &

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

Bu
ild

 O
pt

io
n/

O
th

er
M

ar
ke

t
St

re
ng

th
Co

m
m

en
ts

Ci
ty

 o
f P

et
al

um
a

20
03

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
$2

.1
9

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 5

9,
00

0
In

du
st

ria
l  

$2
.2

6
Re

ta
il 

  
$3

.7
8

Co
un

ty
 o

f S
on

om
a

20
05

O
ffi

ce
  

$2
.6

4
Fi

rs
t 2

,0
00

 S
F 

ex
em

pt
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 4
92

,0
00

Ho
te

l 
$2

.6
4

Re
ta

il 
$4

.5
6

In
du

st
ria

l  
$2

.7
2

R&
D 

Ag
 P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
$2

.7
2

Ci
ty

 o
f C

ot
at

i
20

06
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

$2
.0

8
Fi

rs
t 2

,0
00

 S
F 

ex
em

pt
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 7
,0

00
In

du
st

ria
l 

$2
.1

5
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s e
xe

m
pt

.
Re

ta
il

$3
.5

9
Co

un
ty

 o
f M

ar
in

20
03

O
ffi

ce
/R

&
D 

$7
.1

9
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 2
57

,0
00

Re
ta

il/
Re

st
. 

$5
.4

0
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 
$1

.9
4

Ho
te

l/M
ot

el
 

$1
,7

45
/r

m
M

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

$3
.7

4
Sa

n 
Ra

fa
el

20
05

O
ffi

ce
/R

&
D 

$7
.6

4
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 5
9,

00
0

Re
ta

il/
Re

st
./

Pe
rs

. S
er

vi
ce

s
$5

.7
3

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g/
LI

$4
.1

4
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 
$2

.2
3

Ho
te

l/M
ot

el
 

$1
.9

1
To

w
n 

of
 C

or
te

 M
ad

er
a

20
01

O
ffi

ce
 

$4
.7

9
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 9
,0

00
R&

D 
la

b 
 

$3
.2

0
Li

gh
t I

nd
us

tr
ia

l 
$2

.7
9

W
ar

eh
ou

se
 

$0
.4

0
Re

ta
il 

$8
.3

8
Co

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

$1
.2

0
Re

st
au

ra
nt

 
$4

.3
9

Ho
te

l 
$1

.2
0

He
al

th
 C

lu
b/

Re
c 

$2
.0

0
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y/
Sc

ho
ol

 
$2

.3
9

Ci
ty

 o
f S

t. 
He

le
na

20
04

O
ffi

ce
 

$4
.1

1
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 6
,0

00
Co

m
m

./
Re

ta
il 

$5
.2

1
Ho

te
l 

$3
.8

0
W

in
er

y/
In

du
st

ria
l 

$1
.2

6
Co

un
ty

 o
f N

ap
a

O
ffi

ce
 

$5
.2

5
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 1

39
,0

00
Ho

te
l  

$9
.0

0
N

on
-p

ro
fit

s a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

Re
ta

il 
 

$7
.5

0
In

du
st

ria
l  

$4
.5

0
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 
$3

.6
0

Ci
ty

 o
f N

ap
a

20
16

O
ffi

ce
  

$3
.5

0
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

M
od

er
at

e/
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 7
9,

00
0

Ho
te

l  
$6

.0
0

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s a

re
 e

xe
m

pt
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Re

ta
il 

 
$3

.5
5

In
du

st
ria

l, 
W

in
e 

Pd
n

$3
.5

0
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 (3
0-

10
0K

) 
N

A
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 (1
00

K+
) 

N
A

5,
00

0 
SF

 th
re

sh
ol

d.
 

M
ix

ed
 u

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
ar

e 
ex

em
pt

.

U
pd

at
ed

 2
01

4

Fe
e 

Le
ve

l 
(p

er
 S

q.
Ft

. u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed
)

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d
Ye

s,
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

.
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l

N
O

RT
HE

RN
 S

AN
 F

RA
N

CI
SC

O
 B

AY
 A

RE
A

Ye
s.

 P
ro

gr
am

 
sp

ec
ifi

es
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 

1,
00

0 
SF

.

M
od

er
at

e

M
od

er
at

e 
/ 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

N
/A

Ye
s,

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
.

M
od

er
at

e/
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

Fe
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
y 

EN
R 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 in
de

x.

Fe
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
y 

EN
R 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 in
de

x.

N
/A

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

U
ni

ts
 o

r l
an

d 
de

di
ca

tio
n;

 o
n 

a 
ca

se
 b

y 
ca

se
 

ba
sis

.

Fe
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
y 

EN
R 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 in
de

x.

To
 b

e 
fu

lly
 p

ha
se

d 
in

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
17

.

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s c

ha
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
, a

nd
 a

s a
 re

su
lt,

 te
rm

s a
re

 si
m

pl
ifi

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

re
ce

nt
 b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt
. I

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 fe

es
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

de
x 

(s
uc

h 
as

 C
PI

) 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

. F
or

 u
se

 o
th

er
 th

an
 g

en
er

al
 c

om
pa

ris
on

, p
le

as
e 

co
ns

ul
t t

he
 c

od
e 

an
d 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.

U
ni

ts
 o

r l
an

d 
de

di
ca

tio
n;

 o
n 

a 
ca

se
 b

y 
ca

se
 

ba
sis

.

Ye
s.

 P
ro

gr
am

 
sp

ec
ifi

es
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 

1,
00

0 
SF

.

N
on

-p
ro

fit
s,

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

as
 e

xe
m

pt

Sm
al

l c
hi

ld
ca

re
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 c
hu

rc
he

s,
 n

on
-

pr
of

its
, v

in
ey

ar
ds

, a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

re
 

ex
em

pt
.

Ye
s,

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
.

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d

M
od

er
at

e
Ye

s.
 P

ro
gr

am
 

sp
ec

ifi
es

 u
ni

ts
 

pe
r 1

,0
00

 S
F

Attachment 1C



Ke
ys

er
 M

ar
st

on
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c,
; \

\S
F-

FS
2\

w
p\

19
\1

93
31

\0
02

\N
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ee
s c

ha
rt

; 8
/9

/2
01

6

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
JO

BS
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

IN
KA

G
E 

FE
E 

PR
O

G
RA

M
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

DR
AF

T

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n

Yr
. A

do
pt

ed
/

U
pd

at
ed

Th
re

sh
ol

ds
 &

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

Bu
ild

 O
pt

io
n/

O
th

er
M

ar
ke

t
St

re
ng

th
Co

m
m

en
ts

Fe
e 

Le
ve

l 
(p

er
 S

q.
Ft

. u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed
)

 
 

 
 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
19

81
Re

ta
il 

/ E
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t

$2
2.

96
25

,0
00

 g
sf

 th
re

sh
ol

d
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 8
29

,0
00

U
pd

at
ed

Ho
te

l
$1

8.
42

20
02

, 2
00

7
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

Di
st

. R
ep

ai
r

$1
9.

34
O

ffi
ce

$2
4.

61
Re

se
ar

ch
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

$1
6.

39
Sm

al
l E

nt
er

pr
ise

 W
or

ks
pa

ce
$1

9.
34

Ci
ty

 o
f P

al
o 

Al
to

19
84

N
on

re
sid

en
tia

l D
vl

pm
t

$1
9.

85
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 6
6,

00
0

U
pd

at
ed

 2
00

2

Ci
ty

 o
f M

en
lo

 P
ar

k
19

98
O

ffi
ce

 &
 R

&
D 

$1
5.

57
10

,0
00

 g
ro

ss
 S

F 
th

re
sh

ol
d

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 3

3,
00

0
O

th
er

 c
om

./
in

du
st

ria
l 

$8
.4

5

Ci
ty

 o
f S

un
ny

va
le

19
84

In
du

st
ria

l, 
O

ffi
ce

, R
&

D:
$1

5.
00

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 1

46
,0

00
Re

ta
il,

 H
ot

el
 

$7
.5

0

Re
dw

oo
d 

Ci
ty

20
15

O
ffi

ce
$2

0.
00

5,
00

0 
SF

 th
re

sh
ol

d
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 8
0,

00
0

Ho
te

l
$5

.0
0

Re
ta

il 
&

 R
es

ta
ur

an
t

$5
.0

0

Ci
ty

 o
f M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Vi
ew

U
pd

at
ed

O
ffi

ce
/H

ig
h 

Te
ch

/I
nd

us
t.

$2
5.

00
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 7
7,

00
0

20
02

 / 
20

12
Ho

te
l/R

et
ai

l/E
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t.

$2
.6

8
/2

01
4

O
ffi

ce
 <

10
,0

00
 S

F
Ho

te
l  

 <
25

,0
00

 S
F

Re
ta

il 
 <

25
,0

00
 S

F
Ci

ty
 o

f C
up

er
tin

o
19

93
, 2

01
5

O
ffi

ce
/I

nd
us

tr
ia

l/R
&

D
$2

0.
00

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 6

0,
00

0
Ho

te
l/C

om
m

er
ci

al
/R

et
ai

l
$1

0.
00

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s c

ha
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
, a

nd
 a

s a
 re

su
lt,

 te
rm

s a
re

 si
m

pl
ifi

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

re
ce

nt
 b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt
. I

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 fe

es
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

de
x 

(s
uc

h 
as

 C
PI

) 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

. F
or

 u
se

 o
th

er
 th

an
 g

en
er

al
 c

om
pa

ris
on

, p
le

as
e 

co
ns

ul
t t

he
 c

od
e 

an
d 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.

U
pd

at
ed

 2
00

3 
an

d 
20

15
.

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Fe

e 
is 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
as

ed
 

on
 C

PI
.

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Fe

e 
is 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
as

ed
 

on
 E

N
R.

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Ch

ur
ch

es
; u

ni
ve

rs
iti

es
;  

re
cr

ea
tio

n;
 h

os
pi

ta
ls,

 
pr

iv
at

e 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 d

ay
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

nu
rs

er
y 

sc
ho

ol
, p

ub
lic

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
re

 e
xe

m
pt

 

Ex
em

pt
: f

re
es

ta
nd

in
g 

ph
ar

m
ac

y 
< 

50
,0

00
 S

F;
 

gr
oc

er
y 

< 
75

,0
00

Fe
e 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

as
ed

 
on

 C
PI

.
Ye

s

SA
N

 F
RA

N
CI

SC
O

, P
EN

IN
SU

LA
, S

AN
TA

 C
LA

RA
 C

O
U

N
TY

Ye
s,

 m
ay

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

la
nd

 
fo

r h
ou

sin
g.

Fe
e 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

as
ed

 
on

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 
in

cr
ea

se
s.

 

Ye
s.

 P
ro

gr
am

 
sp

ec
ifi

es
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

SF
.

Fe
e 

is 
50

%
 o

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
ar

ea
 u

nd
er

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
:

Ye
s

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d.
N

/A

N
/A

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l

Fe
e 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

as
ed

 
on

 C
PI

.

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Fe

e 
is 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
as

ed
 

on
 C

PI
.

Fe
e 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

as
ed

 
on

 C
PI

.

Ch
ur

ch
es

, p
riv

at
e 

cl
ub

s,
 lo

dg
es

, f
ra

te
rn

al
 

or
gs

, p
ub

lic
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s w

ith
 fe

w
 o

r 
no

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

re
 e

xe
m

pt
.

O
ffi

ce
 fe

e 
is 

50
%

 o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 2
5,

00
0 

SF
 o

f 
bu

ild
in

g 
ar

ea
. E

xe
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r C
hi

ld
 c

ar
e,

 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 h
os

pi
ta

l, 
no

n-
pr

of
its

, p
ub

lic
 u

se
s.

25
%

 fe
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 p
ay

in
g 

pr
ev

ai
lin

g 
w

ag
e.

 S
ch

oo
ls,

 c
hi

ld
 c

ar
e 

ce
nt

er
s,

 
pu

bl
ic

 u
se

s e
xe

m
pt

. 

Ye
s,

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
. 

M
ay

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ho

us
in

g 
on

- o
r 

of
f-s

ite
.



Ke
ys

er
 M

ar
st

on
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c,
; \

\S
F-

FS
2\

w
p\

19
\1

93
31

\0
02

\N
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ee
s c

ha
rt

; 8
/9

/2
01

6

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
JO

BS
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

IN
KA

G
E 

FE
E 

PR
O

G
RA

M
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

DR
AF

T

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n

Yr
. A

do
pt

ed
/

U
pd

at
ed

Th
re

sh
ol

ds
 &

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

Bu
ild

 O
pt

io
n/

O
th

er
M

ar
ke

t
St

re
ng

th
Co

m
m

en
ts

Fe
e 

Le
ve

l 
(p

er
 S

q.
Ft

. u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed
)

EA
ST

 B
AY

 
Ci

ty
 o

f W
al

nu
t C

re
ek

20
05

$5
.0

0
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 6
6,

00
0

Ci
ty

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
20

02
O

ffi
ce

/ W
ar

eh
ou

se
 

$5
.2

4
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 4
02

,0
00

Ci
ty

 o
f B

er
ke

le
y

19
93

O
ffi

ce
$4

.5
0

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 1

16
,0

00
20

14
Re

ta
il/

Re
st

au
ra

nt
$4

.5
0

In
du

st
ria

l/M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
$2

.2
5

Ho
te

l/L
od

gi
ng

$4
.5

0
W

ar
eh

ou
se

/S
to

ra
ge

$2
.2

5
Se

lf-
St

or
ag

e
$4

.3
7

R&
D

$4
.5

0
Ci

ty
 o

f E
m

er
yv

ill
e

20
14

Al
l C

om
m

er
ci

al
$4

.1
0

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 d
ay

ca
re

 c
en

te
rs

.
Ye

s
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Fe

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
.

Ci
ty

 o
f A

la
m

ed
a

19
89

Re
ta

il
$2

.3
0

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 7

6,
00

0
O

ffi
ce

$4
.5

2
W

ar
eh

ou
se

$0
.7

8
M

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g

$0
.7

8
Ho

te
l/M

ot
el

 
$1

,1
08

Ci
ty

 o
f P

le
as

an
to

n
19

90
$3

.0
4

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 7

3,
00

0
Ci

ty
 o

f D
ub

lin
20

05
In

du
st

ria
l

$0
.4

9
20

,0
00

 S
F 

th
re

sh
ol

d
N

/A
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 5
0,

00
0

O
ffi

ce
$1

.2
7

R&
D

$0
.8

3
Re

ta
il

$1
.0

2
Se

rv
ic

es
 &

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

$0
.4

3
Ci

ty
 o

f N
ew

ar
k

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

$3
.5

9
N

o 
m

in
 th

re
sh

ol
d

Ye
s

M
od

er
at

e
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 4
4,

00
0

In
du

st
ria

l
$0

.6
9

Ci
ty

 o
f L

iv
er

m
or

e
19

99
Re

ta
il 

$1
.1

9
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 8

4,
00

0
Se

rv
ic

e 
Re

ta
il 

 
$0

.9
0

O
ffi

ce
 

$0
.7

6
Ho

te
l

$5
83

/ r
m

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
 

$0
.3

7
W

ar
eh

ou
se

 
$0

.1
1

Bu
sin

es
s P

ar
k 

 
$0

.7
6

He
av

y 
In

du
st

ria
l  

$0
.3

8
Li

gh
t I

nd
us

tr
ia

l  
$0

.2
4

M
od

er
at

e

M
od

er
at

e

M
od

er
at

e

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 re
lig

io
us

 
in

st
itu

tio
ns

 e
xe

m
pt

.

Ch
ur

ch
, p

riv
at

e 
or

 p
ub

lic
 sc

ho
ol

s e
xe

m
pt

.
Ye

s;
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
on

 a
 c

as
e-

by
-

ca
se

 b
as

is.

M
od

er
at

e

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

7,
50

0 
SF

 th
re

sh
ol

d.

O
ffi

ce
, r

et
ai

l, 
ho

te
l a

nd
 m

ed
ic

al
 

Ye
s -

 C
an

 b
ui

ld
 

un
its

 e
qu

al
 to

 
to

ta
l e

lig
ib

le
 S

F 
tim

es
 .0

00
04

Fi
rs

t 1
,0

00
 S

F 
no

 fe
e 

ap
pl

ie
d.

Ye
s

Ve
ry

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
25

,0
00

 S
F 

ex
em

pt
io

n

An
nu

al
 C

PI
 in

cr
ea

se
. M

ay
 

ne
go

tia
te

 fe
e 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 h

ar
ds

hi
p 

or
 re

du
ce

d 
im

pa
ct

.

Re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ve

ry
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

.

Fe
e 

du
e 

in
 3

 in
st

al
lm

en
ts

.  
Fe

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 w

ith
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 
es

ca
la

to
r t

ie
d 

to
 re

sid
en

tia
l 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 in
cr

ea
se

s.

Fe
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 b
y 

CP
I.

Fe
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

.

Re
vi

se
d 

an
nu

al
ly

Ye
s

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

, O
ffi

ce
 &

 In
du

st
ria

l 
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

Ye
s

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s c

ha
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
, a

nd
 a

s a
 re

su
lt,

 te
rm

s a
re

 si
m

pl
ifi

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

re
ce

nt
 b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt
. I

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 fe

es
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

de
x 

(s
uc

h 
as

 C
PI

) 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

. F
or

 u
se

 o
th

er
 th

an
 g

en
er

al
 c

om
pa

ris
on

, p
le

as
e 

co
ns

ul
t t

he
 c

od
e 

an
d 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d
Ye

s.
  P

ro
gr

am
 

sp
ec

ifi
es

 #
 o

f 
un

its
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

SF



Ke
ys

er
 M

ar
st

on
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c,
; \

\S
F-

FS
2\

w
p\

19
\1

93
31

\0
02

\N
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ee
s c

ha
rt

; 8
/9

/2
01

6

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
JO

BS
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

IN
KA

G
E 

FE
E 

PR
O

G
RA

M
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

DR
AF

T

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n

Yr
. A

do
pt

ed
/

U
pd

at
ed

Th
re

sh
ol

ds
 &

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

Bu
ild

 O
pt

io
n/

O
th

er
M

ar
ke

t
St

re
ng

th
Co

m
m

en
ts

Fe
e 

Le
ve

l 
(p

er
 S

q.
Ft

. u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed
)

 
 

 
 

SA
CR

AM
EN

TO
 A

RE
A

Ci
ty

 o
f S

ac
ra

m
en

to
19

89
O

ffi
ce

$2
.2

5
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

M
od

er
at

e
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 4
76

,0
00

Ho
te

l
$2

.1
4

R&
D

$1
.9

1
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
$1

.8
0

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
$1

.4
1

W
ar

eh
ou

se
/O

ffi
ce

$0
.8

2

Ci
ty

 o
f F

ol
so

m
20

02
O

ffi
ce

, R
et

ai
l, 

Lt
 In

du
st

ria
l,

$1
.5

4
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

Ye
s

M
od

er
at

e/
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 7
3,

00
0

an
d 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l

Co
un

ty
 o

f S
ac

ra
m

en
to

19
89

O
ffi

ce
$0

.9
7

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d
M

od
er

at
e

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 1

,4
50

,0
00

Ho
te

l
$0

.9
2

R&
D

$0
.8

2
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
$0

.7
7

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
$0

.6
1

In
do

or
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l C

en
te

rs
$0

.5
0

W
ar

eh
ou

se
$0

.2
6

Ci
ty

 o
f E

lk
 G

ro
ve

19
89

O
ffi

ce
no

ne
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

M
od

er
at

e
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 1
58

,0
00

Ho
te

l
$1

.8
7

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

$0
.6

4
M

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g

$0
.7

2
W

ar
eh

ou
se

$0
.7

7

Ci
tr

us
 H

ei
gh

ts
19

89
O

ffi
ce

$0
.9

7
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

M
od

er
at

e
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 8
5,

00
0

Ho
te

l
$0

.9
2

R&
D

$0
.8

2
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
$0

.7
7

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
$0

.6
1

In
do

or
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l C

en
te

rs
$0

.5
0

W
ar

eh
ou

se
$0

.2
6

Ra
nc

ho
 C

or
do

va
19

89
O

ffi
ce

$0
.9

7
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

M
od

er
at

e
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 6
7,

00
0

Ho
te

l
$0

.9
2

R&
D

$0
.8

2
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
$0

.7
7

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
$0

.6
1

In
do

or
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l C

en
te

rs
$0

.5
0

W
ar

eh
ou

se
$0

.2
6

U
p 

to
 2

00
,0

00
 S

F,
 1

00
%

 o
f f

ee
; 2

00
,0

00
-2

50
,0

00
 S

F,
 

75
%

 o
f f

ee
; 2

50
,0

00
-3

00
,0

00
 S

F,
 5

0%
 o

f f
ee

; 3
00

,0
00

 
an

d 
up

, 2
5%

 o
f f

ee
.

N
/A

M
or

tu
ar

y,
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

ts
, g

ar
ag

es
, R

C 
st

or
ag

e,
 

Ch
ris

tm
as

 tr
ee

 lo
ts

, B
&

Bs
, m

in
i-s

to
ra

ge
, 

al
co

ho
lic

 b
ev

er
ag

e 
sa

le
s,

 re
ve

rs
e 

ve
nd

in
g 

m
ac

hi
ne

s,
 m

ob
ile

 re
cy

cl
in

g,
 a

nd
 sm

al
l 

re
cy

cl
ab

le
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

N
/A

Pa
y 

20
%

 fe
e 

pl
us

 
bu

ild
 a

t r
ed

uc
ed

 
ne

xu
s

O
ffi

ce
 fe

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

ai
ve

d 
du

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t c

on
di

tio
ns

. 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ne
w

 o
r 

re
ha

b 
ho

us
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 to
 

ve
ry

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
. 

Al
so

, l
an

d 
de

di
ca

tio
n.

N
/A

N
/A

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s c

ha
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
, a

nd
 a

s a
 re

su
lt,

 te
rm

s a
re

 si
m

pl
ifi

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

re
ce

nt
 b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt
. I

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 fe

es
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

de
x 

(s
uc

h 
as

 C
PI

) 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

. F
or

 u
se

 o
th

er
 th

an
 g

en
er

al
 c

om
pa

ris
on

, p
le

as
e 

co
ns

ul
t t

he
 c

od
e 

an
d 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.

M
os

t r
ec

en
t 

up
da

te
, 2

00
5

(in
he

rit
ed

 fr
om

 
Co

un
ty

 w
he

n 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
)

(in
he

rit
ed

 fr
om

 
Co

un
ty

 w
he

n 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
)

(n
ot

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

gi
ve

n 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

fe
e)

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 (c
hu

rc
he

s,
 n

on
-

pr
of

its
, e

tc
.),

 m
in

i s
to

ra
ge

, c
ar

 st
or

ag
e,

 
m

ar
in

as
, c

ar
 w

as
he

s,
 p

riv
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ga

ra
ge

s 
an

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

s e
xe

m
pt

Fe
e 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

as
ed

 
on

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
 in

de
x

N
or

th
 N

at
om

as
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 fe
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e

Se
le

ct
 n

on
pr

of
its

, s
m

al
l c

hi
ld

 c
ar

e 
ce

nt
er

s,
 

ch
ur

ch
es

, m
in

i s
to

ra
ge

, p
ar

ki
ng

 g
ar

ag
es

, 
pr

iv
at

e 
ga

ra
ge

s,
 p

riv
at

e 
sc

ho
ol

s e
xe

m
pt

.

Se
rv

ic
e 

us
es

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
by

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
s a

re
 

ex
em

pt

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 (c
hu

rc
he

s,
 n

on
-

pr
of

its
, e

tc
.),

 m
in

i s
to

ra
ge

, c
ar

 st
or

ag
e,

 
m

ar
in

as
, c

ar
 w

as
he

s,
 p

riv
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ga

ra
ge

s 
an

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

s e
xe

m
pt

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 (c
hu

rc
he

s,
 n

on
-

pr
of

its
, e

tc
.),

 m
in

i s
to

ra
ge

, c
ar

 st
or

ag
e,

 
m

ar
in

as
, c

ar
 w

as
he

s,
 p

riv
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ga

ra
ge

s 
an

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

s e
xe

m
pt

(in
he

rit
ed

 fr
om

 
Co

un
ty

 w
he

n 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
)



Ke
ys

er
 M

ar
st

on
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c,
; \

\S
F-

FS
2\

w
p\

19
\1

93
31

\0
02

\N
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l f

ee
s c

ha
rt

; 8
/9

/2
01

6

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
JO

BS
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

IN
KA

G
E 

FE
E 

PR
O

G
RA

M
S,

 C
AL

IF
O

RN
IA

DR
AF

T

Ju
ris

di
ct

io
n

Yr
. A

do
pt

ed
/

U
pd

at
ed

Th
re

sh
ol

ds
 &

 E
xe

m
pt

io
ns

Bu
ild

 O
pt

io
n/

O
th

er
M

ar
ke

t
St

re
ng

th
Co

m
m

en
ts

Fe
e 

Le
ve

l 
(p

er
 S

q.
Ft

. u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 n
ot

ed
)

 
 

 
 

O
TH

ER
 C

AL
IF

O
RN

IA
 JU

RI
SD

IC
TI

O
N

S
Ci

ty
 o

f S
an

ta
 M

on
ic

a
19

84
Re

ta
il

$9
.7

5
1,

00
0 

SF
 th

re
sh

ol
d

N
/A

Ve
ry

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 9

2,
00

0
U

pd
at

ed
O

ffi
ce

$1
1.

21
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
20

02
, 2

01
5

Ho
te

l/L
od

gi
ng

$3
.0

7
Ho

sp
ita

l
$6

.1
5

In
du

st
ria

l
$7

.5
3

In
st

itu
tio

na
l

$1
0.

23
Cr

ea
tiv

e 
O

ffi
ce

$9
.5

9
M

ed
ic

al
 O

ffi
ce

$6
.8

9
Ci

ty
 o

f W
es

t H
ol

ly
w

oo
d

19
86

N
on

-R
es

id
en

tia
l 

$8
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 3
5,

00
0

(p
er

 st
af

f i
nc

re
as

e 
fr

om
 $

4 
to

 $
8 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 fo

r F
Y1

6-
17

) 

Ci
ty

 o
f S

an
 D

ie
go

19
90

O
ffi

ce
$1

.7
6

N
o 

m
in

im
um

 th
re

sh
ol

d
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l
Po

pu
la

tio
n:

 1
,3

42
,0

00
Ho

te
l

$1
.0

6
R&

D
$0

.8
0

Re
ta

il
$1

.0
6

Co
un

ty
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

ru
z

20
15

Al
l N

on
-R

es
id

en
tia

l
$2

.0
0

Po
pu

la
tio

n:
 2

67
,0

00
N

o 
m

in
im

um
 th

re
sh

ol
d

N
/A

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s c

ha
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
as

se
m

bl
ed

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

n 
ov

er
vi

ew
, a

nd
 a

s a
 re

su
lt,

 te
rm

s a
re

 si
m

pl
ifi

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

re
ce

nt
 b

ut
 n

ot
 a

ll 
da

ta
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt
. I

n 
so

m
e 

ca
se

s,
 fe

es
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 a

n 
in

de
x 

(s
uc

h 
as

 C
PI

) 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

. F
or

 u
se

 o
th

er
 th

an
 g

en
er

al
 c

om
pa

ris
on

, p
le

as
e 

co
ns

ul
t t

he
 c

od
e 

an
d 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.

Ca
n 

de
di

ca
te

 
la

nd
 o

r a
ir 

rig
ht

s 
in

 li
eu

 o
f f

ee

Fe
es

 a
dj

us
te

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

 in
de

x.

Fe
es

 a
dj

us
te

d 
by

 C
PI

 a
nn

ua
lly

In
du

st
ria

l/ 
w

ar
eh

ou
se

, n
on

-p
ro

fit
 h

os
pi

ta
ls 

ex
em

pt
.

Pr
iv

at
e 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 c
ity

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 p

la
ce

s o
f 

w
or

sh
ip

, c
om

m
er

ci
al

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

sin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 e
xe

m
pt

.

U
pd

at
ed

 2
01

4





1 

MEMORANDUM________________________________________________________ 

To: Carol Giovanatto, City Manager 

From: John Abaci, Assistant City Attorney 

Date: August 8, 2016 

Re: Prohibiting or Restricting Conditional Uses for Vacation Rentals 
________________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND 

You have asked our office to research and analyze the following potential options for 
limiting or prohibiting vacation rentals as a conditional use under the City’s Municipal 

Code: 

1) Phasing out conditional use permits for vacation rentals over time;
2) Adoption of a moratorium upon issuance of conditional use permits for vacation

rentals;
3) Penalizing persons operating vacation rentals without being issued conditional use

permits through some other method than payment of back taxes.

These three options are being considered as potential means for providing more 
affordable housing within the City. 

SHORT ANSWER 

Currently, vacation rentals are allowed with a conditional use permit within 
commercial and mixed use zoning districts.  When a conditional use permit is issued the 
permit runs with the land and cannot be revoked or terminated without cause.  A 
conditional use permit may only be revoked on the grounds of a permit violation or the 
operation of the rental in a manner that constitutes a public nuisance. Accordingly, a 
conditional use permit that has been issued cannot be eliminated, terminated, or phased 
out over time on the grounds that the law is being amended to no longer allow conditional 
use permits for vacation rentals.  However, a moratorium or urgency ordinance that 
prevents the issuance of any new vacation rental permits can be adopted and extended 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65858(a) or (b), provided that the proper findings 
can be made. 

The Municipal Code does authorize the City to penalize those who operate 
vacation rentals without a conditional use permit under civil or criminal proceedings.  
Penalties include civil, criminal, or administrative fines and/or imprisonment.   

Attachment 2A



2 

ANALYSIS 

I. Conditional Use Permits Cannot Be Amortized Or Phased Out Over Time.

Vacation rentals are defined by SMC 19.92.020 as follows: “the rental or letting of up 

to two complete residential units, containing bedrooms, kitchens, and bathrooms, for a 
period of less than 30 days.  Typically, no on-site manager is present.”  The Sonoma 
Municipal Code (SMC) permits vacation rentals within commercial and mixed use 
districts upon the terms and conditions of conditional use permits issued by the City.  
SMC 19.10.050 (Tables 2-2 and 2-3).  A use permit for vacation rentals will continue in 
effect until action is taken by the City to revoke the permit.   

“A conditional use permit is administrative permission for uses not allowed as a 
matter of right in a zone, but subject to approval.” Sounhein v. City of San Dimas, 47 
Cal. App. 4th 1181, 1187-88 (1996).  A conditional use permit regulates land, not 
individuals. Id. Conditional use permits run with the land and entitle all subsequent 
owners of the property to the same rights and benefits as the original permittee. Id.  SMC 
19.56.060 expresses this concept by stating that a conditional use permit will continue to 
be valid “upon a change of ownership of the site, business, service, use or structure.” 

A CUP is conditional by definition, and the violation of conditions attached to its 
grant may lead to revocation. Malibu Mountains Recreation, Inc. v. Cty. of Los Angeles, 
67 Cal. App. 4th 359, 367 (1998).  Otherwise, a conditional use permit may only be 
revoked on the basis of a compelling public necessity which occurs when the conduct of 
the business constitutes a nuisance. O’Hagen v. Bd. of Zoning Adjustment (1971) 19 
Cal.App.3d 151, 158.    Although SMC 19.90.090 provides various grounds for the 
revocation of a conditional use permit, the courts have established that a conditional use 
permit may only be revoked or terminated by the city if the terms of the permit have been 
violated or if the manner in which the activity is being operated constitutes a public 
nuisance. 1  The fact that a conditional use no longer complies with a change in the 
zoning of a property does not furnish a compelling public necessity or establish that the 
manner in which the use is being operated creates a nuisance. Id. at 159. 

A somewhat anomalous consequence of granting a conditional use permit in most 
cities is that the holder of a conditional use permit will be entitled to more protection 
from changes in the law than would a business conducting a permitted use.  A business 
can be phased out or amortized over time when it is engaged in a permitted use and the 
law later changes to prohibit or restrict that same use (i.e., legal nonconforming use).2  
On the other hand, when a conditional use permit has already been obtained, the use 

1 There is one other very limited basis for a conditional use permit to be terminated.  That is, when the 
permittee has never actually commenced the conditional use the permit may be terminated without grounds. 
2 A legal nonconforming use is a use that was lawful when it was established but is no longer permitted to 
some degree or in total because of a change in the law after the date that it was established.  Many cities 
afford businesses that become legal nonconforming uses a specified amortization period (usually 3 to 5 
years) in order to protect the investment interest of the owner while ensuring that the use will be 
discontinued in time as contemplated under the new zoning scheme. 



3 
 

cannot be phased out or amortized at the time the law is changed to prohibit the use.  
Accordingly, the City cannot establish a time period in which a conditional use permit 
will be amortized or phased out over time, as it could with a business engaged in a legal 
nonconforming use. 
 

II.  The City May Adopt A Moratorium On The Issuance Of Conditional Use 
Permits For Vacation Rentals. 

 
State law provides that cities may adopt “moratorium” or “urgency” ordinances that 

prevent the issuance of new conditional use permits while the city undergoes the process 
of considering a permanent ordinance that may ban, restrict, or otherwise limit the use 
that is the subject of the conditional use permit.  The “urgency” ordinance is not required 

to be reviewed by the Planning Commission or have two readings, as other zoning 
ordinances must.  However, the ordinance must include findings that “there is a current 
and immediate threat to the public health, safety or welfare, and that the approval of 
additional…use permits…would result in that threat to public health, safety, or welfare.” 

Government Code Section 65858(c).  Additionally, the ordinance may either be in effect 
for 10 months and 15 days and be subject to one extension of 1 year, or it may be in 
effect for 45 days and be subject to one extension of 22 months and 15 days.  Under 
either option, the ordinance requires a 4/5 vote of the city council. 
 

This statute allows cities to “classify, exclude, restrict, and limit what a land 

owner may do with his or her property, subject of course to certain constitutional 
constraints.” Building Industry Legal Foundation v. Superior Court (1999) 72 Cal.App.4th 
1410, 1416.  Permitting cities to establish such a moratorium “protect[s] and promote[s] 

the planning process by, among other things, prohibiting the introduction of potentially 
nonconforming land uses that could defeat a later adopted general plan or zoning 
ordinance. Id. at 1418.  Therefore, provided that the City can make the proper findings 
under Government Code Section 65858(c), a moratorium ordinance which prevents the 
issuance of any new vacation rental conditional use permits during the period that the 
moratorium ordinance remains in effect can be adopted by the City. 
 

As stated above, any such moratorium ordinance will be subject to “constitutional 
constraints.” In the case of conditional use permits a moratorium ordinance will not 
operate to terminate, revoke, or limit any conditional use permit that has been issued and 
is in effect at the time of the adoption of the moratorium ordinance.  All conditional use 
permits which have been issued prior to the moratorium being adopted will remain in 
effect while the moratorium is in place and will be unaffected by a permanent ordinance 
prohibiting such conditional use permits which may be adopted during the moratorium 
period. 
 

III.  The City Can Utilize Those Remedies That Are Available To It For Violations 
Of The Municipal Code When Redressing Vacation Rentals That Are 
Operated Without Conditional Use Permits. 

 
Any violation of Title 19 (Development Code) of the Municipal Code can be 



4 

redressed through a civil or criminal penalty.  Section 19.90.080 provides that any person 
who violates the provisions of Title 19 shall be liable for a civil penalty “in compliance 

with the council’s fee resolution for each day that the violation continues to exist.”  In 

addition, the person shall be liable for the costs incurred and the “damages suffered by 
the city, its agents, and agencies as a direct result of the violations.”  That section also 

provides that any person violating Title 19 shall be guilty of a misdemeanor which is 
punishable by a maximum fine of $1,000 or imprisonment in the county jail for a 
maximum period of 6 months, or both. 

Alternatively, Section 1.12.010 sets forth penalties for a violation of any section 
of the Municipal Code.  Under that section a violation may be punishable as an 
infraction.3  An infraction carries with it a maximum fine of $250 for a first violation and 
$500 for any additional violation within a one-year period.  The City can also impose an 
administrative fine for a violation of the Municipal Code which is determined in 
accordance with a schedule of penalties established by resolution of the City Council. 
SMC 1.12.010(D) and SMC Chapter 1.30 (in general).  

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 996-9690 if you have any questions or 
would like to discuss this matter further. 

3 The same penalty for a misdemeanor as recited above is also established by this section.  As such, the act 
of operating a vacation rental without a conditional use permit can be prosecuted as either a misdemeanor 
or infraction, in accordance with the City’s desire. 



C
ity

 o
f S

on
om

a 
- L

eg
al

 V
ac

at
io

n 
R

en
ta

ls
 (u

pd
at

ed
 8

/9
/1

6)
O

pe
ra

to
r/P

ro
pe

rt
y 

N
am

e
A

PN
Si

te
 A

dd
re

ss
Zo

ni
ng

N
um

be
r o

f 
U

ni
ts

A
pp

ro
va

l D
at

e
Ty

pe
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l

Al
ex

an
dr

a'
s 

Pl
az

a 
Su

ite
01

8-
22

2-
02

3
44

0 
Se

co
nd

 S
tre

et
 E

as
t

R
-L

/H
1

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

C
as

a 
D

e 
C

ar
ro

ll
01

8-
44

2-
01

9
96

5 
W

es
t S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
C

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
An

dr
ea

's
 H

id
de

n 
C

ot
ta

ge
01

8-
17

1-
00

9
13

8 
Ea

st
 S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-M
/H

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
Bu

ng
al

ow
s 

31
3

01
8-

16
2-

02
5

31
3 

Fi
rs

t S
tre

et
 E

as
t

R
-M

/H
5

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

C
as

a 
C

hi
qu

ita
 C

ot
ta

ge
01

8-
78

0-
00

1
19

6 
W

es
t S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-M
/H

2
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
Bl

an
kf

or
t/M

ar
tin

01
8-

35
2-

03
0

11
7 

Fr
an

ce
 S

tre
et

R
-L

/H
1

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

So
no

m
a 

Fa
rm

ho
us

e 
To

w
n

01
8-

20
1-

00
3

44
6 

Th
ird

 S
tre

et
 W

es
t

R
-L

/H
2

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

H
uf

f
01

8-
12

1-
02

1
28

9 
Fi

rs
t S

tre
et

 W
es

t
R

-M
/H

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
M

at
hi

s
01

8-
12

1-
02

0
28

7 
Fi

rs
t S

tre
et

 W
es

t
R

-M
/H

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
C

ec
ilia

's
 A

do
be

01
8-

17
2-

00
3

37
8 

Se
co

nd
 S

tre
et

 E
as

t
R

-M
/H

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
C

or
to

pa
ss

i
01

8-
19

1-
03

4
47

7 
W

es
t S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-L
3

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

C
un

eo
 C

ot
ta

ge
01

8-
23

1-
02

2
39

1 
Ea

st
 S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-L
/H

1
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
Su

sa
n'

s 
G

ue
st

 C
ot

ta
ge

01
8-

20
2-

00
6

45
8 

Se
co

nd
 S

tre
et

 W
es

t
C

/H
2

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

C
oo

pe
ra

ge
 In

n
01

8-
16

1-
01

7
30

1 
Fi

rs
t S

tre
et

 W
es

t
R

-M
/H

3
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
C

ar
ol

in
e'

s 
C

ot
ta

ge
12

8-
17

2-
05

1
17

1 
N

ew
co

m
b 

St
re

et
R

-L
1

G
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
G

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

Be
rn

ar
d

01
8-

20
1-

00
8

27
0 

W
es

t N
ap

a 
St

re
et

, U
ni

t 2
R

C
/H

1
4/

13
/0

0
U

se
 P

er
m

it
C

ot
ta

ge
 S

on
om

a
01

8-
20

2-
00

2
42

4 
Se

co
nd

 S
tre

et
 W

es
t

R
-M

/H
1

7/
10

/0
3

Ad
ap

tiv
e 

R
eu

se
Bu

ng
al

ow
 S

on
om

a
01

8-
20

2-
02

6
15

7 
W

es
t S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-M
/H

1
7/

10
/0

3
Ad

ap
tiv

e 
R

eu
se

Tu
ls

i C
ot

ta
ge

01
8-

17
1-

03
0

30
4 

Fi
rs

t S
tre

et
 E

as
t

R
-M

/H
1

6/
9/

05
Ad

ap
tiv

e 
R

eu
se

C
as

a 
Se

ba
st

ia
ni

01
8-

14
1-

01
2

24
7 

Fo
ur

th
 S

tre
et

 E
as

t
R

-H
S/

H
1

9/
14

/0
6

Ad
ap

tiv
e 

R
eu

se
In

n 
W

in
e 

C
ou

nt
ry

01
8-

35
2-

05
2

75
8 

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
X/

H
1

1/
10

/0
8

U
se

 P
er

m
it

Au
be

rg
e 

So
no

m
a

01
8-

26
1-

02
3

15
1 

Ea
st

 N
ap

a 
St

re
et

R
-M

/H
2

5/
20

/0
8

Ad
ap

tiv
e 

R
eu

se
M

ar
y 

Je
an

's
 P

la
ce

12
8-

08
3-

02
1

20
07

3 
Br

oa
dw

ay
M

X/
H

1
12

/1
1/

08
U

se
 P

er
m

it
So

no
m

a 
Fa

rm
ho

us
e 

R
an

ch
01

8-
20

1-
00

4
45

4 
Th

ird
 S

tre
et

 W
es

t
C

/H
1

3/
10

/1
1

U
se

 P
er

m
it

Ti
lle

m
-F

eg
an

01
8-

41
2-

03
2

85
4 

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
X/

H
1

12
/1

1/
11

U
se

 P
er

m
it

Jo
ne

s-
M

or
ris

on
12

8-
08

3-
00

9
20

07
9 

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
X/

H
1

2/
14

/1
2

U
se

 P
er

m
it

M
at

t &
 J

an
 M

at
he

w
s

01
8-

20
1-

00
7

28
4-

29
4 

W
es

t N
ap

a 
St

re
et

, U
ni

ts
 #

2 
an

d 
#3

C
/H

2
4/

11
/1

3
U

se
 P

er
m

it
So

no
m

a 
Pl

az
a 

18
89

01
8-

20
1-

03
9

46
4 

Th
ird

 S
tre

et
 W

es
t

C
/H

1
4/

11
/1

3
U

se
 P

er
m

it
M

ar
in

o
01

8-
41

1-
02

0
85

3 
Br

oa
dw

ay
M

X/
H

1
4/

11
/1

3
U

se
 P

er
m

it
O

'T
oo

le
01

8-
22

1-
02

0
18

0 
Ea

st
 N

ap
a 

St
re

et
R

-M
/H

1
5/

9/
13

Ad
ap

tiv
e 

R
eu

se
D

am
ba

ch
-A

rg
en

zi
an

o
01

8-
35

2-
04

0
78

0 
Br

oa
dw

ay
M

X/
H

1
8/

8/
13

U
se

 P
er

m
it

R
ed

m
on

d
01

8-
21

2-
02

6
56

7 
Fi

rs
t S

tre
et

 E
as

t
C

/H
1

10
/1

0/
13

U
se

 P
er

m
it

M
ar

in
o

01
8-

20
2-

01
0

15
8 

W
es

t N
ap

a 
St

re
et

C
/H

1
3/

13
/1

4
U

se
 P

er
m

it
M

ar
in

o
01

8-
20

2-
00

9
16

4 
& 

17
2 

W
es

t N
ap

a 
St

re
et

C
/H

2
3/

13
/1

4
U

se
 P

er
m

it
Ti

lle
m

-O
ls

en
01

8-
78

0-
00

6
16

2-
16

6 
W

es
t S

pa
in

 S
tre

et
R

-M
/H

2
11

/3
/1

4
Ad

ap
tiv

e 
R

eu
se

M
ar

tin
ez

-M
on

ta
gu

e
01

8-
25

1-
02

0
51

5 
Fi

rs
t S

tre
et

 W
es

t
C

/H
1

1/
8/

15
U

se
 P

er
m

it
Ti

lle
m

-F
eg

an
01

8-
41

2-
03

2
84

6 
Br

oa
dw

ay
M

X/
H

1
4/

9/
15

U
se

 P
er

m
it

83
5 

Br
oa

dw
ay

 L
LC

01
8-

41
1-

02
2

83
5 

Br
oa

dw
ay

M
X/

H
1

9/
10

/1
5

U
se

 P
er

m
it

So
no

m
a 

C
ou

rt 
Sh

op
s*

01
8-

21
2-

99
9

11
 E

as
t N

ap
a 

St
re

et
/5

33
 F

irs
t S

tre
et

 E
as

t
C

/H
2

6/
9/

16
U

se
 P

er
m

it
To

ta
l:

55

Zo
ni

ng
 D

es
ig

na
tio

ns
:

R
-L

 =
 L

ow
 D

en
si

ty
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
10

R
-M

 =
 M

ed
iu

m
 D

en
si

ty
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
22

R
-H

S 
= 

H
ills

id
e 

R
es

id
en

tia
l

1
C

 =
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
14

M
X 

= 
M

ix
ed

 U
se

8
/H

 =
 H

is
to

ric
 O

ve
rla

y 
Zo

ne
51

*U
nd

er
 a

pp
ea

l.

Attachment 2B





LilypadHomes.org 415-250-9317  Info@LilypadHomes.org

Junior Accessory Dwelling Units (JADU) – Talking Points 

Fact – The traditional family (mother, father and one or more children) now makes up 33% of 
the population in California. (California Census 2010) 

Fact – There is a steady rise in households consisting of single-parent families, couples without 
children, empty nesters, retirees, young professionals and individuals of all ages. (California 

Census 2010) 

Fact – Approximately 60% of the housing stock in California is detached single-family and one 
couple or less live in the majority of these homes. (California Census 2010) 

Fact – Only 56% of the housing stock in California is owner occupied, and these households are 
generally bigger than renter households. (California Census 2010) 

Fact – The number of seniors will double in the next 20 years, going from 4.3M to 8.4M.  There 
is not enough time to develop the necessary institutional housing. (HCD Housing Update 2012) 

Fact – Young professionals (25 – 34) rely on affordable rental housing for longer periods than 
previous generations due to low wages, the high cost of living, and outstanding student debt. 

(HCD Housing Update 2012) 

Fact – Homeowners are currently allowed to have roommates in all of their bedrooms with no 
additional permitting fees, parking, fire sprinklers or fire attenuation required. 

Fact – Going through the permitting process makes loans for lower-income households 
available through Housing Authority agencies rehabilitation loan programs across the state. 

Fact – A recent survey of homeowners 55 years and older in Corte Madera, CA confirms that 
24% of homeowners, 171 households, are interested in creating JADUs in their homes. (Age 

Friendly Corte Madera Survey 2014)  

Fact – Baby boomers will live longer than previous generations and the vast majority wish to 

age in their home. (HCD Housing Update 2012) 

Fact – Affluent areas throughout California are experiencing a crisis because teachers, 
caregivers and other vital workers cannot afford housing in the communities where they work. 

Fact – The overwhelming majority of households in California could not afford to rent or 
purchase their current home if they were coming into the housing market today. 

Fact – Fannie Mae has introduced a new loan platform, available in December 2015 that will 
allow barrowers to qualify for a mortgage based on income from non-signing members of a 

household, as well as income generated from renting a second unit. (Fannie Mae Press 

Release)Fact – We are moving back toward a multi-generational housing model.  Having an in-

law apartment is the fastest growing trend in residential real estate, boosting home values, as 
an increasing number of families pool their resources. (Wall Street Journal 2014) 

Attachment 3A



	
	

LilypadHomes.org                                                415-250-9317                                             Info@LilypadHomes.org                        	

	
	

Solution – JADUs privatize spare bedrooms creating flexible in-law apartments that allow for 

multi-generation housing opportunities in existing homes. 

Solution – Because all the water, sewer and energy, road use and parking for existing 
bedrooms has already been accounted for in the original permit for the home, no additional 

utility service, parking or infrastructure should be required for the development of JADUs. 

Solution – A simple and inexpensive permitting process for JADUs allows for the redevelopment 

of single-family homes, creating additional housing that is flexible and better suited for the 

changing demographic of California’s population. 

Solution – JADUs are the low-hanging fruit in the housing equation.  They offer an abundant 

low-cost, low-impact and high-benefit solution to the affordable housing crisis in California. 

Solution – JADUs offer the only new housing option that makes housing more affordable for 

both renters and homeowners.  

Solution – No fire sprinklers or fire attenuation should be required for JADUs because the 

interior door leading to the main living area remains, offering the option to privatize a 

bedroom(s) creating a flexible, independent housing unit.  

Solution – Development of JADUs will not require capital investment from local, state or federal 

programs because homeowners finance the development of these housing units. 

Solution – JADUs are a more affordable housing option because they are small in size, and are 

an unconventional form of housing. 

Solution – JADUs offer an abundant source of new smaller homes, helping to stabilize the rental 

housing market in California due to increased supply. 

Solution – JADUs will allow seniors the opportunity to age in their home by generating income 

and offering housing to caregivers, possibly in lieu of payment. 

Solution – JADUs allow homeowners to temporarily house loved ones, caregivers and people 

who work in the community, as well as families who need temporary housing due to 

environmental emergencies. 

Solution – JADUs will help us meet the goals of the California Global Warming Act by allowing 

people to live in the communities where they work and by more efficiently utilizing the built 
environment.  

Solution – JADUs offer an insurance policy in homes, providing a fallback position in case of 

unexpected events such as: loss of a job, divorce, injury or illness. 

Solution – A home is most people’s largest, most personal investment.  JADUs allow homes to 

be flexible enough to meet a homeowner’s changing needs during the period of ownership. 

 



 
 

LilypadHomes.org                                                415-720-0225                                             Info@LilypadHomes.org                         

 
 

Novato Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 

Code and Requirements 

- Municipal Code: 19.34.031 Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
- Conversion of existing bedroom(s) – no expansion 
- Addition of a wet-bar kitchen: 

- Maximum 16”x16” sink, maximum 1 ½” waste line 
- Food preparation counter and storage cabinets not to exceed six feet 

in length 
- No gas or 220 V electrical service 

- Interior and exterior access 
- 150 to 500 square feet  
- Private or shared bath 
- Deed restricted to require owner occupancy 

- Parking: No additional parking is required beyond that required at the time the 
existing primary dwelling was constructed. 

- Fire Protection: The Novato Fire Protection District does not require fire sprinklers 
or fire separation between the main house and the junior unit. 

 

Fees 

- City Fees: Planning Permit Fee: reduced from $747 to $374 
                                      Building Permit Fee: based on projected cost of project (labor, materials) 

- Novato Fire Protection District Fees: reduced from $729 to $0  
- North Marin Water District Fees: connection fee reduced from $10,000 to $0 
- Novato Sanitary District Fees: $8,990 connection fee eliminated; $40 permit fee 

established 

 
This information on regulations and fees was provided to Lilypad by City and agency 
personnel and is subject to change. 

http://www.lilypadhomes.org/wp-content/uploads/JADU-in-Novato-Municipal-Code.pdf
http://www.lilypadhomes.org/wp-content/uploads/JADU-in-Novato-Municipal-Code.pdf


A.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

a.

b.

c.

8.

19.34.031 - Junior Accessory Dwelling Units.

This Section provides standards for the establishment of junior accessory dwelling units, an alternative to

the standard accessory dwelling unit, permitted as set forth in Section 19.34.030, and are allowed in

accordance with Article 2 (Zoning Districts, Allowable Land Uses, and Zone-Specific Standards).

Development Standards. Junior accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following standards,

including the standards in Table 3-13:

Number of Units Allowed: Only one accessory dwelling unit or, junior accessory dwelling unit,

may be located on any residentially zoned lot that permits a single-family dwelling except as

otherwise regulated or restricted by an adopted Master Plan or Precise Development Plan. A

junior accessory dwelling unit may only be located on a lot which already contains one legal

single-family dwelling.

Owner Occupancy: The owner of a parcel proposed for a junior accessory dwelling unit shall

occupy as a principal residence either the primary dwelling or the accessory dwelling.

Sale Prohibited: A junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold independently of the primary

dwelling on the parcel.

Deed Restriction: A deed restriction shall be completed and recorded, in compliance with Section

D below.

Location of Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit: A junior accessory dwelling unit must be created

within the existing walls of an existing primary dwelling, and must include conversion of an

existing bedroom.

Separate Entry Required: A separate exterior entry shall be provided to serve a junior accessory

dwelling unit.

Kitchen Requirements: The junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen,

requiring and limited to the following components:

A sink with maximum width and length dimensions of sixteen (16) inches and with a

maximum waste line diameter of one-and-a-half (1.5) inches,

A cooking facility or appliance which does not require electrical service greater than one

hundred and twenty (120) volts or natural or propane gas, and

A food preparation counter and storage cabinets which do not exceed six (6) feet in length.

Parking. No additional parking is required beyond that required at the [time the] existing primary

dwelling was constructed.

Table 3-13

Development Standards for Junior Accessory Dwelling Units

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


B.

1.

2.

C.

1.

2.

3.

D.

Site or Design Feature Site and Design Standards

Maximum unit size 500 square feet

Minimum unit size 150 square feet

Setbacks As required for the primary dwelling unit by Article 2

Parking No additional parking required

 

Application Processing.

The Zoning Administrator shall issue a junior accessory dwelling unit permit if the application

provides the information required per the Submittal Requirements (Section C. below) and

conforms to the Development Standards (Section A. above).

The City shall provide notice in compliance with Division 19.58 - Public Hearings.

Submittal Requirements. Application for a junior accessory dwelling unit shall include a completed

application for a junior accessory dwelling unit permit and the following information as deemed

appropriate by the Zoning Administrator:

Plot Plan (Drawn to Scale). Dimension the perimeter of parcel on which the junior accessory

dwelling will be located. Indicate the location and use of all existing and proposed structures on

the project site.

Floor Plans. A dimensioned plan drawn to scale of the existing primary dwelling identifying the

use of each room and identifying the room(s) to be dedicated to the junior accessory dwelling

unit, including an exterior entrance. The resulting floor area calculation of the proposed junior

accessory dwelling unit shall be included, which shall include the area of any dedicated

bathroom, if any, for the exclusive use of the junior accessory dwelling unit.

Kitchen Plan. A dimensioned plan drawn to scale indicating proposed kitchen improvements,

including a kitchen sink, cooking appliance(s) food preparation counter and food storage

cabinets.

Deed Restriction. Prior to obtaining a building permit for a junior accessory dwelling unit, a deed

restriction, approved by the City Attorney, shall be recorded with the County Recorder's office, which

shall include the pertinent restrictions and limitations of a junior accessory dwelling unit identified in

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


1.

2.

3.

4.

this Section. Said deed restriction shall run with the land, and shall be binding upon any future

owners, heirs, or assigns. A copy of the recorded deed restriction shall be filed with the Department

stating that:

The junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the primary dwelling unit;

The junior accessory dwelling unit is restricted to the maximum size allowed per the

development standards in Section 19.34.031;

The junior accessory dwelling unit shall be considered legal only so long as either the primary

residence, or the accessory dwelling unit, is occupied by the owner of record of the property;

The restrictions shall be binding upon any successor in ownership of the property and lack of

compliance with any provisions of Section 19.34.030, may result in legal action against the

property owner, including revocation of any right to maintain a junior accessory dwelling unit on

the property.

(Ord. No. 1595, § 2(Exh. A), 12-16-2014)

https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/
https://www.municode.com/library/


sharesonomacounty .org 

SH,;' JE
SONOMA COUf'\ITY 

HOME WHAT IS HOME SHARING? •1 TYPES OF HOME SHARES HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS More 

OUR MISSION 

SHARE Sonoma County, in partnership with Petaluma People Services 
Center (PPSC), offers a free Home Sharing Program for 

anyone living in Sonoma County. 

i Our program creates affordable housing, using existing housing, 
helps our seniors remain home safely to age in place, and 

helps to prevent homelessness. 

SHARE facilitates secure home shares for home owners or renters 
with those in need of housing, who are currently stressed financially, 

experiencing life transitions, looking for companionship, and/or 
needing basic assistance to remain home safely and THRIVE!! 

HOMI= PROVIDER 

I IOMLOWN[J2 I RENTER 

http://sharesonomacounty.org/ 

SEEKER 

+ 
-

-

TFNANT 

For More Information, Please Call: 

Tel. (707) 766-8800, ext. 126 

Fax: (707) 765-8899 

Email: info@sharesonomacounty.org 

., 2016 by SHARE Sonoma County 

HOMf= SHAl<ING 

COMMUNITY 

Page 1 of 1 

8/8/2016 

Attachment 3B



sharesonomacounty .org 

HOME 

s E 
SO N O{v1A CO UN TY 

WHAT IS HOME SHARING? 4 TYPES OF HOME SHARES HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS 

SHARE Sonoma Count y Home Share s are living arrangement s betwee n two or more 

unr elated pople, one of who m is 60 years of age o r o lder, who ag ree to share a home or 

a partment fo r their mutual be nefit. Each person ha s their ow n bedroo m a nd 

pos s ibly bathr oo m, whi le shar ing com mon living areas. 

OTHER HOME SHARE PROGRAMS 
Home sharing was developed in th e late 1970s and ea rly 1980s with a focus to he lp 

those who are hou se rich and cas h poor. HID Housing of San Mateo Count y deve lope d 

it's home shar ing pro gram in th e late 1970's . Vermont h as several ho me sharin g 

prog rams as doe s San Diego, Los Angele s, New York among ot hers. The home sha ring 

concept is an evidence - ba sed model promoted by AARD a nd other fede ral an d s tate 

agencies. Sonoma County an d the City of Santa Rosa now allow Section 8 vouchers 

Housing Authority to be appl ied for those renting a room/ home sha ring. 

OENEFITS 
Easin g fin anci al burd ens 
Compan ionship 
Security of not livin g a lone 
Remainin g at home and "A ging in p lace" for 
tho se needing bas ic assista nce 
1-lelp t hose at r isk or new ly home less int o 
perm anent ho using 

CONCERNS 
The bigges t co ncerns about home sha rin g is makin g sure that th e match is a sa fe 

on e, that no hidde n iss ue s emerge once the home sharing begins, a nd th at there 

is no co nflict around lifestyle differences , co nflictin g schedule s, smoking, alcohol 

a nd /or drug use. To help alleviate these con cerns SHARE provides variou s 

screenin g tool s, includin g an on line back gro und che ch s ite tO he lp red uce th e 

pot ential for risk. SHARE hou sing specia lists cond uct an interview with eac h 

part icipant as well as perfirmin g a home inspe ction of eac h house th at is 

rep rese nted for a ho me sha re. 

rr For More Information, Please Call: ll 

http ://sharesonomacounty .org/ 

Page 1 of 1 

More 

8/8/2016 



sharesonomacounty .org Page 1 of 1 

'JE 

HOME WHAT IS HOME SHARING? 4 TYPES OF HOME SHARES HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS Mc 

< 

4 TYPES OF HOME SHAPES 

1. Rent-Exchange: Hom e Share whereby Ho me Seeker s, in need of affo rd ab le 

hou sing, are matc hed with Home Prov ider s, who own or rent their hom e or 

apa rtment (h ave the ab ility to sub let) and, who are in ne ed addition a l in come. Ro om 

renta ls ave rag e from $400.00 to $1,500.00 per month , ut il ity cos ts included . 

2 . Serv ice- Exchange: Hom e Seekers are matched with Ho me Prov ider s, who own or 

rent th eir ho me and who need clearly defined services, e.g. companionship, meal 

preparat ion, drivin g to app ointm ent s, hou sekeeping, o r yard work in ord er to remain 

in th eir home, age in place and thr ive. No rent is exchanged , some util ity cost m ight 

be requ i red. Ut ili ty cost rarely exceeds $10 0 .00/m onth . Home Seeke r respo nsib le 

for cost o f h is or her food . 

3 . Part ial Rent & Serv ice Exchange: Home Seeke r is responsible for paying so me rent 

and a few carefu lly defin ed servi ces to pr ov ided for the Home Provid er. Average rent 

is $300.00/ month, whi ch includ es th e cost of ut i lit ies. 

4. SHAR E Community Houses: Ho uses prov ided to SHARE by ho me owners who do 

not live in the home and whi ch enab les SHARE to manage each room w ith tenants 

who each have a lease agreement d irect ly with the ho me owner. To-date, SHARE 

has create d 3 Co mmunity Ho uses, a tota l of 12 beds . A sense of co mmun ity is 

created, a long with affordab le hou sing, and assistin g so me to leave th e shelter 

system into perm anent ho using. 

For More Information , Please Call: 

Tel. (707) 766 - 8800 , ext. 126 
) 

v 

http://sharesonomacounty.org/ 8/8/2016 



Note: The following information copied from SHARE 
Sonoma County Website (sharesonomacounty.org) 

How the Program Works: 

Request SHARE Sonoma County Home Sharing Program Information Packet which includes: 

• Questionnaire "Is Home Sharing Right for You?" 

• What is Home Sharing? 

• Home Sharing Application for either the seeker or provider 

• Agreement Concerning Responsibilities and Liability 

o Declaration of Non-Criminal History 

o Declaration of Non-Drug Abuse 

o List of reference 

• About Background Checks 

• Authorization to Release Credit/Tenant/Criminal History 

Completing the Home Sharing Application 

If you answered "YES!" to the questionnaire "Is Home sharing Right for You?", please complete the 
application. Please drop off the completed application at our offices, or scan and email, or fax to us at: 

1500 Petaluma Blvd. South. Petaluma, CA 94952 
Judy@sharesonomacounty.org 
Telephone No. (707) 766-8800, exyt.126 
Fax No. (707) 766-8899 

Please note: 

• One participant within each match must be 60 years or older 

• Anyone with a felony or misdemeanor within the past ten (10) years for child or elder abuse 
cannot participate in the SHARE program 

• Anyone with current pending criminal proceedings or on parole cannot participate in the SHARE 
program 



We encourage you to be as forthcoming as possible so that we can best understand your needs and 
preferences for home sharing. Any applicant determined to knowingly have misrepresentations on his 
or her application will be immediately disqualified. 

Interview: 

Once we have received your application packet, conducted our screening process and, contacted your 
three references provided, a Housing Specialist will contact you to schedule an in-person interview at 
our Petaluma office or other convenient location. 

Note: For the Interview please bring: 

• Photo Identification 

• proof of income 

• Social Security Card 

SHARE of Sonoma County will keep your private information, e.g. Social Security Number, confidential 
and in secured location 

Criminal/Credit/Rental History Background Check of Home Seekers: 

SHARE Sonoma County uses an online screening service, (3) reference checks, along with several online 
websites which provides information regarding: 

• Credit and Criminal History 

• This screening includes national sex-offender registries 

It is recommended that all participants conduct their own personal background check of any potential 
match by a reputable online background check service. SHARE will make available a list of reputable 
online screening services. 

Home Inspection of Home Provider 

The SHARE Housing Specialist will schedule a home visit of each potential Home Provider in order to 
determine that there are no obvious safety or structural concerns. During this visit review of the 
completed application is reviewed in order to define the needs of the Home Provider and define the 
type and structure of the Home Share. 

The Matching Process 

The matching process is the most critical component of the home sharing program. SHARE takes this 
process very seriously. It is important that you complete the Home Sharing Application to the very best 
of your ability. There is no such thing as providing too much information! We encourage you to be as 
detailed as you wish in order that we have as much information about you, your likes and dislikes, and 
your lifestyle in order to suggest the best possible potential match or matches for you . 



Once we have identified a potential match, SHARE Sonoma County will contact you and each potential 
match and schedule a phone conversation between you and each potential match. After this 
conversation, if you both want to meet face-to-face, SHARE will then schedule a meeting for both of you 
that will take place at an agreed upon location . 

Note: Before meeting face-to-face with each potential match, you will have an opportunity to contact 
the references of each potential match . SHARE strongly recommends that you personally check all of the 
references for each potential match being considered for home sharing. 

First Face -to -Face Meeting 

It is a good idea to think about your current lifestyle, daily routines , habits, how much time you spend at 
home, your interests, likes and dislikes, and the activities you enjoy. You will no doubt have questions 
for your potential match and it might be a good idea to write them down and bring to this meeting. In 
addition, the SHARE Housing Specialist can provide a list of questions for your use 

You and Your Match 
Agree to Home -Share 

Congratulations! You and your match have agreed to a home visit I The SHARE Housing Specialist will 
schedule the visit and be available to participate at your request. If the Home Seeker is satisfied with the 
home, it is now time for you to both prepare and enter into a written Home Sharing Agreement (HSA), 
prepared by SHARE, that provides a detailed description of the home share and defined services being 
rendered in lieu of partial or full rent. This is a legal and binding document. 

Home Sharing Agreement 

The Home Share Agreement will thoroughly detail the living arrangements, schedules, chore 
responsibilities and any restrictions as best as possible at this initial stage of the home share. All Service 
Exchange Home Shares begin on a trial basis of thirty (30) days and rent exchange home shares are 
month-to-month with a thirty (30) day notice unless otherwise agreed upon. SHARE Sonoma County 
facilitates drafting of this Agreement for approval by each party and recommends this document be 
signed before the date of move-in. If you are two (2) Home Sharers renting from a third party, e.g. 
landlord, the Home sharing Agreement will be separate from your rental agreement. 

Note: Home Providers/Renters must have the landlord's written permission to lease or sublease to 
any Home Seeker. 

Home Sharing Begins 

SHARE Sonoma County is excited that your home sharing has begun and will support each home sharer 
through the trial period and up to eight (8) weeks to ensure this transition occurs as smoothly as 
possible. It is our mission that your home sharing experience be successful. You are encouraged to 
contact SHARE Sonoma County during this time to communicate any concerns that might arise. 



Note: SHARE Sonoma County does not represent either party in the match, and makes no guarantee 
regarding the suitability of the housing or the home sharing relationship . SHARE Sonoma County is not 
liable for any costs or claims that might arise out of the home sharing relationship. 





 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
3A 
 
08/15/16 

                                                                                            

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

    School Attendance Awareness Month Proclamation 
 

Summary 

Steve Nielsen of the Sonoma County Office of Education requested a proclamation recognizing 
September as Attendance Awareness Month.  He will be present to accept the proclamation. 

 

In keeping with City practice, the proclamation recipient has been asked to keep the total length of 
their follow-up comments and/or announcements to not more than 10 minutes. 

Recommended Council Action 

Mayor Gallian to present the proclamation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion 

Financial Impact 

n/a 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation 

 

 
cc:  Steve Nielsen - via email 





 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
3B 
 
08/15/16 

                                                                                            

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

    Freedom Week Sonoma Proclamation 
 

Summary 

 

Freedom Week Sonoma is an extension of Freedom Day USA, where businesses in our community 
join together to show their appreciation to members of the armed services, their immediate families, 
veterans and first responders (firefighters & law enforcement officers) by providing them with FREE 
services, food items or products throughout the week.  This year’s observance will be held 
September 8-11, 2016. 

 

Freedom Week Sonoma is sponsored by the following organizations:  Rotary Club of Sonoma 
Valley, AMVETS Hap Arnold Post #55, American Legion Jack London Post 489, Sonoma Valley 
Chamber of Commerce and the Sonoma Valley Visitors Bureau. 

 

Dr. Kimberly Hubenette requested a proclamation recognizing Freedom Week Sonoma and will be 
present to accept the proclamation. 

 

In keeping with City practice, the proclamation recipient has been asked to keep the total length of 
their follow-up comments and/or announcements to not more than 10 minutes. 

Recommended Council Action 

Mayor Gallian to present the proclamation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion 

Financial Impact 

n/a 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation 

 

 
cc:  Kimberly Hubenette - via email 







 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4B 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of the minutes of the July 6 and July 18, 2016 City Council Meetings. 

Summary 

The minutes have been prepared for Council review and approval. 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve the minutes. 

Alternative Actions 

Correct or amend the minutes prior to approval. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

 Minutes 
 
Alignment with Council Goals:  N/A 

 

cc:  N/A 

 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 6, 2016, Page 1 of 4 

    
    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

OPENING 

 
Mayor Gallian called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   Terry Leen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CITY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: Agrimonti, Edwards, Hundley, Cook and Mayor Gallian. 
ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Manager Giovanatto, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk Johann, City 
Attorney Walter, Stormwater Compliance Specialist Pegg, Finance Director Hilbrants 
 

1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Cecelia Ponicsan complimented the Council for their successful Goal Setting meeting and 
reported that a company called Battery Recyclers of America would recycle all types of 
batteries. 
 
Terry Leen announced the formation of an American Veterans (AMVETS) organization in 
Sonoma and that he was the Commander Elect.  He added that they stood ready to support the 
City. 
 

2. MEETING DEDICATIONS - None 

 

3. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Item 3A: Presentation and update on stormwater program activities. 
 
Stormwater Compliance Specialist Pegg presented an informative and detailed report on the 
City stormwater system and responded to a few questions from the City Council. 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 4A: Waive Further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of 

Ordinances by Title Only.  
Item 4B: Approval of the minutes of the June 27, 2016 City Council Meeting. 

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL 

& 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

DISSOLVED SONOMA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 
 

Wednesday July 6, 2016 
6:00 p.m. 

**** 

MINUTES 

City Council 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

Madolyn Agrimonti, MPT 
David Cook, 

Gary Edwards 
Rachel Hundley 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 6, 2016, Page 2 of 4 

Item 4C: Approval of the allocation of a City funded rental at the Sonoma Veteran’s 
Memorial Building as requested by AMVETS Post 55. 

Item 4D: Approval and ratification of the appointment of Matt Metzler as the alternate 
commissioner for the Community Services and Environment Commission 
for an initial two-year term. 

 
The public comment period was opened and closed with none received.  It was moved by Clm.     
Hundley, seconded by Clm. Agrimonti, to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY 

 
Item 5A: Approval of the portions of the minutes of the June 27, 2016 City Council 

meeting pertaining to the Successor Agency. 
 
The public comment period was opened and closed with none received.  It was moved by Clm.     
Cook, seconded by Clm. Agrimonti, to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – None Scheduled 

 

7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 7A: Discussion, consideration and possible action to adopt a resolution calling 

for an election on a proposed ballot measure to continue the existing voter 
approved funding of a transactions and use (sales) tax to fund general city 
services. 

 
City Manager Giovanatto reported that, pursuant to Council direction given at the June 27, 2016 
meeting, staff had prepared the appropriate documents to place the extension of the sales tax 
on the November 2016 ballot.  She stated that staff was seeking Council input on the term of the 
tax, the ballot measure language and the writer of the argument in favor. 
 
Mayor Gallian invited comments from the public.  David Eichar expressed support for the 
measure and added that Council may want to consider raising the Transient Occupancy Tax. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Agrimonti, seconded by Clm. Hundley, approve a five year term for the 
tax and the ballot language and to appoint Councilmembers Edwards and Hundley as the 
argument writers; and to adopt Resolution No. 21-2016 incorporating those decisions, and 
entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA APPROVING 
CALLING FOR, GIVING NOTICE OF, AND ESTABLISHING  THE POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES FOR AN ELECTION ON A PROPOSED BALLOT MEASURE TO CONTINUE 
THE EXISTING VOTER APPROVED FUNDING OF A TRANSACTIONS AND USE (SALES) 
TAX TO FUND GENERAL CITY SERVICES; AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY OF SONOMA 
TO CONDUCT  THE ELECTION ON THE CITY'S BEHALF. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 6, 2016, Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
Item 7B: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve a Resolution 

Setting Priorities for Filing a Written Argument Regarding a City Measure. 
 
City Manager Giovanatto reported that at the June 27, 2016 meeting Council directed that the 
referendum measure relating to leaf blowers be placed on the November 2016 ballot.  This 
issue has been brought back for Council to decide who would write the argument in favor of the 
ordinance. 
 
Mayor Gallian invited comments from the public.  David Eichar expressed his support for 
banning leaf blowers and questioned if an argument writers’ eligibility was confirmed.  City Clerk 
Johann responded that she would confirm if an argument writer was a registered voter if that 
was the requirement. 
 
Sarah Ford stated that Sonoma Neighbors Against Leaf Blowers (SNALB) would be happy to 
help write the argument and questioned if they qualified as a bona fide association. Mara Lee 
Ebert and Cecelia Ponicsan agreed with Ms. Ford.  Attorney Walter opined that the group would 
qualify. 
 
Clm. Hundley stated she preferred to leave it to the community.  Clm. Agrimonti stated she was 
neutral but would agree to be on a Council subcommittee.  Clm. Cook stated he was neutral but 
didn’t want the City Clerk to have to decide.  Mayor Gallian stated her support for a Council 
subcommittee to write the argument.  It was moved by Clm. Cook, seconded by Clm. Agrimonti, 
that Mayor Gallian and Clm. Agrimonti would write the argument and to adopt Resolution No. 
22–2016 entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA 
SETTING PRIORITIES FOR FILING A WRITTEN ARGUMENT REGARDING A CITY 
MEASURE.  The motion carried four to one, Clm. Edwards dissented. 
 

8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 

9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
Clm. Cook reported that the Sonoma Clean Power board was considering allowing Mendocino 
County to join and that he would seek direction from the Council before voting on that issue.  
His office hour would now be on Wednesdays at 1:00. 
 
Clm. Edwards reported meeting with Sonoma Overnight Shelter and that he would continue to 
research their proposal for a Safe Parking Program and would be prepared to share his ideas 
and thoughts at the August meeting. 
 
Clm. Agrimonti thanked those who helped clean up after the fireworks display. 
 
Clm. Hundley reported that SVCAC reviewed plans for a restaurant at the old Uncle Patty’s 
location.  She also reported attendance at the Vitality Partnership meeting.   
 
Mayor Gallian reported on the Open House Community Partnership workshop; thanked the 
newspaper for putting together the grand jury report; announced a July 16 meeting regarding 
Hwy 116 improvements and proposed round about; attended the ribbon cutting at Sweet 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 6, 2016, Page 4 of 4 

Scoops; loved the fireworks and thanked the public for their generous support; and she will be 
holding office hours on Wednesday at 11 a.m. 
 

10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING 
ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF - None 

 

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
Lynn Clary requested signs be placed in the Plaza restricting chasing the ducks. 
 
Cecelia Ponicsan complained that many service trucks still did not have the required signage. 
 
Mara Lee Ebert reported that members of SNALB went around to businesses asking them not 
to use leaf blowers and received a very positive response. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:50  p.m. 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Sonoma City Council on the      day of       2016. 
 
_________________________ 
Gay Johann 
Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 
 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 1 of 6 

    
    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SPECIAL MEETING - CLOSED SESSION 
 

Mayor Gallian called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m.  No one from the public was present to provide 
public testimony on the closed session item.  The Council recessed into closed session with all 
members present.  City Manager Giovanatto and City Attorney Walter were also present. 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION pursuant to Paragraph (1) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government Code.  Name of case: Selma Blanusa 
v. City of Sonoma, a municipal corporation. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
Mayor Gallian called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Fire Chief Mark Freeman led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT: 
Mayor Gallian announced that Council had provided direction to staff while in Closed Session. 
 
CITY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: Agrimonti, Edwards, Hundley, Cook and Mayor Gallian. 
ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Manager Giovanatto, Assistant City Manager Johann, City Attorney 
Walter, Finance Director Hilbrants, Public Works Director Takasugi 
 

1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Tom Cannard complained that the street closures related to the Napa to Sonoma Wine Country Half 
Marathon sponsored by Destination Races created a great inconvenience to local residents.  He 
stated that it took it a half hour to get from 5th Street East to 5th Street West and he questioned why 
the City was allowing the event to occur. 
 
Toni Castrone, acknowledging her resignation, introduced the new Sonoma Community Center 
Deputy Executive Director Jesse Irving and stated it had been a pleasure to work with the City. 
 
Matt Metzler thanked the City Council for appointing him to the Community Services and Environment 
Commission. 
 

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL 

& 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

DISSOLVED SONOMA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 
 

Monday July 18, 2016 
5:45 p.m. Closed Session (Special Meeting) 

6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 

**** 

MINUTES 

City Council 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

Madolyn Agrimonti, MPT 
David Cook, 

Gary Edwards 
Rachel Hundley 

 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 2 of 6 

Lynda Corrado reported that she had been studying traffic patterns around the Plaza and suggested 
the City install synchronized pedestrian crossing lights at each corner of the Plaza. 
 

2. MEETING DEDICATIONS 

 
Mayor Gallian dedicated the meeting to the family of three year old Owen Bradley Todeschini who 
was tragically killed when struck by a vehicle. 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Item 3A: Proclamation in Recognition of the Service of Ralph and Joseph Keechler 
 
Mayor Gallian read aloud the proclamation and presented it to Ralph and Joseph Keechler.  To 
commemorate their service to the community and preserve a historical record of their service, the 
wording of the proclamation is reproduced herewith: 
 

RECOGNITION OF THE SERVICE OF 

RALPH AND JOSEPH KEECHLER 

 

          WHEREAS, Ralph and Joseph Keechler have volunteered with the Sonoma Valley Fire and 

Rescue Authority (SVFRA) for a remarkable 100 years combined; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Ralph, is a Sonoma native who served in World War II with the 75th Infantry 

Division and participated in the Battle of the Bulge at the rank of Corporal.  In addition to the 60 

years of service with SVFRA he has also been an active member of the Native Sons of the Golden 

West for 71 years promoting and preserving California’s history and landmarks for future 

generations; and    

 

 WHEREAS, Ralph currently serves as SVFRA Division Chief guaranteeing his experience 

informs the organizations operations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Ralph passed along his passion for service to his son Joseph who has served 

SVFRA for 40 years.  He is currently a Captain and also serves on the Board of the Sonoma 

Volunteer Firefighters’ Association sharing his firsthand experience for the benefit of other 

volunteers; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the service of Ralph and Joseph with SVFRA ensures fire, rescue and 

emergency medical services to Sonoma and surrounding communities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, LAURIE GALLIAN, Mayor of the City of Sonoma, do hereby 

recognize and commend Ralph and Joseph Keechler for their professionalism, dedication to service, 

and spirit of volunteerism and thank them for all they have done and continue to do for the 

members of our community.  

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby set my hand and cause the seal of the City of Sonoma 

to be affixed this 18th day of July 2016. 

      __________________________________ 

      LAURIE GALLIAN, MAYOR 
 
  
 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 3 of 6 

Fire Chief Freeman also thanked the pair and stated it had been an honor to serve with them.  In 
closing, they received a standing ovation. 
 
Item 3B: Update on the Code Enforcement Program 
 
City Prosecutor Bob Smith provided a report on the newly initiated Code Enforcement Program and 
successes they had already achieved.  He stated they look forward to growing a partnership with the 
Police Department and hope to have caught up the backlog of citizen complaints by the end of the 
year.   
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 4A: Waive Further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of Ordinances 

by Title Only.  
Item 4B: Adoption of Plans and Specifications, Acceptance of Bids and Award of Contract 

for the Valley of the Moon Nursery School ADA & Maintenance Improvement 
Project to Gregory Equipment, Inc. of Redding, CA. 

Item 4C: Application for Temporary Use of City Streets for the 2016 Valley of the Moon 
Vintage Festival Parade, Blessing of the Grapes, Fire Department Bucket Brigade 
and Foot Race (September 24 and 25, 2016).   

Item 4D: Discussion, consideration, and possible action to submit a letter of intent to 
renew the Joint and Mutual Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services 
Agreement between Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District and City of 
Sonoma.   

Item 4E: Adoption of an amended resolution rescinding Resolution No. 21-2016 and 
Calling for an Election on a Proposed Ballot Measure to Continue the Existing 
Voter Approved Funding of a Transactions and Use (Sales) Tax To Fund General 
City Services.  (Res. No. 23-2016) 

Item 4F: Adoption of Plans and Specifications, Award a Contract to VSS International, 
Inc., lowest responsible bidder, for the 2016 Citywide Slurry Seal Project No. 
1601, Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract in the 
amount of $117,120.00, and Authorize the Planning Director to sign the CEQA 
Notice of Exemption.   

 
The public comment period opened and closed with none received. It was moved by Clm. Cook, 
seconded by Clm. Agrimonti, to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY – 
No Items 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – None Scheduled 

 

7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 7A: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve the Agreement with 

the Sonoma Valley Visitors Bureau For Visitors Center Operations and Visitor 
Information Services for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019.  

 
City Manager Giovanatto reported since 2004, the City had maintained a funding agreement with the 
Sonoma Valley Visitors Bureau covering Visitor Center Operations and Visitor Information Services 
which enhance and promote the economic viability of the City.  The funding source had been the 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 4 of 6 

Sonoma Community Development Agency (redevelopment funds) until 2011 when the Governor 
eliminated redevelopment agencies.  The State allowed a five year phase-out period which extended 
that funding through June 30, 2016.  She reported that the Visitors Bureau requested a renewal of the 
agreement and discussions were initiated in late 2015 regarding reducing the parameters of funding 
levels due to the loss of the City’s funding source.   Following several meetings during which the 
Visitors Bureau completed a full budget review under their new Executive Director, and conferred with 
the Tourism Improvement Bureau (TID), the TID Board voted to support funding an additional 
$100,000 towards the Plaza Center if the City would additionally support a funding level of $100,000 
in an effort to mitigate the loss of the $218,000 in redevelopment funding. 
 
City Manager Giovantto stated that staff was presenting a three-year agreement for Council 
consideration providing an annual payment of $100,000 in exchange for their valuable services. 
 
Clm. Hundley, referring to a letter from David Eichar, questioned if the TID had agreed to replace the 
funding provided by the City should the redevelopment agency be terminated.  City Manager 
Giovanatto stated that the TID could only fund the Bureau on a limited basis per State law.  Clm. 
Hundley also questioned if the Bureau received any funding from the County and if, in their new 
branding process, they were taking into consideration the tension felt by residents regarding further 
growth to tourism. 
 
Executive Director Jonny Westom, responded that they received $94,000 from the Sonoma County 
Economic Development Board and $30,000 from the Board of Supervisors.  He added that they had 
sent questionnaires out to the public and would be holding a symposium to obtain input from the 
public regarding their new branding. 
 
Clm. Agrimonti stated her appreciation for the Bureau’s efforts in curtailing tour bus parking in the 
Plaza and for the new community calendar included on their website. 
 
In response to a question from Clm. Edwards, Mr. Westom stated that he and two of his Board 
members were also on the County Tourism Board and he had established a good relationship with 
their executive director. 
 
Mayor Gallian invited comments from the public.  Citing minutes and staff reports from previous 
Council meetings, David Eichar claimed that the TID had agreed to make up the difference in Bureau 
funding for any loss of redevelopment money. 
 
Bill Blum, TID Boardmember, disagreed with the claim made by Eichar and stated that the TID had 
agreed to assist with funding the Bureau but not to provide the total amount of lost funding.  He 
pointed out that the Bureau had enjoyed a partnership with the City for at least twenty-five years. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Agrimonti, seconded by Clm. Edwards, to adopt Res. No. 24-2016 entitled A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA APPROVING THE 
AGREEMENT WITH SONOMA VALLEY VISITORS BUREAU FOR VISITOR CENTER 
OPERATIONS AND VISITOR INFORMATION SERVICES.   
 
In response to a question by Clm. Hundley, Westom explained that the Bureau does pay rent to the 
City; however they had overpaid some years back and were still working off that credit.  Clm. Hundley 
stated that she liked that in the agreement the Bureau agreed to support promotion and economic 
development in accordance with the City’s goals and that it had a clause allowing the City to terminate 
it without cause. 
 
Clm. Cook and Clm. Edwards expressed their support of the ongoing relationship and appreciation for 
the services the Bureau provides. 



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 5 of 6 

 
Mayor Gallian stated there had not been a commitment on the part of the TID for one hundred percent 
of the funding.  She stated her support and appreciation for the services provided by the Bureau and 
liked that the agreement contained accountability measures. 
 
Being put to a vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Item 7B: Discussion, consideration and possible adoption of a resolution calling for an 

election on a proposed ballot measure amending Chapter 7.24 of the Sonoma 
Municipal Code (City’s Smoking Ordinance) to impose more stringent 
restrictions and prohibitions on smoking in the City of Sonoma.  

 
City Attorney Walter reported that staff was recommending a different approach than what was 
included in Ordinance 04-2016 adopted on June 6, 2016 to address this issue because they felt trying 
to explain to the voters that a previous initiative measure needed to be repealed in order to allow a 
City Council ordinance to become enforceable was perceived as unnecessarily convoluted.  He said 
staff had developed and was now proposing a more direct approach by modifying Ordinance 04-2016 
to state that it was an ordinance of the people of the City of Sonoma, but still retaining the identical 
substantive provisions of the ordinance.   In addition, the modified ordinance included a provision 
granting to the City Council the power to amend the ordinance in the future, as conditions warrant.  
Thus, if this ordinance was approved by the voters, and it became necessary to amend it in the future 
to meet changing circumstances and/or scientific evidence pertaining to the adverse effects of 
smoking, it could be amended by the City Council without having the measure being returned to the 
voters for approval.  The proposed ballot question contained in the resolution read as follows: 
 
““In order to more comprehensively protect the health and safety of the citizens of Sonoma shall an 
ordinance be adopted that amends the City’s existing 1992 smoking ordinance to include more 
restrictions by prohibiting smoking in public places, multi-unit residences, hotels and motels, enclosed 
common areas, enclosed dining areas, outdoor recreational areas and parks, outdoor public places, 
outdoor dining areas and within 25 feet of any area where smoking is prohibited?”   
 
Clm. Cook asked for the ballot question to include that the Council would have the ability to amend 
the ordinance.  Attorney Walter responded that information could be included in the impartial analysis 
and argument in favor of the measure. 
 
Mayor Gallian invited comments from the public.  Pam Granger, Lori Bremner and Elizabeth Emerson 
spoke in favor of the ballot measure and offered their assistance in writing the argument in favor. Ms. 
Granger suggested replacing the word restrictions with protections in the ballot question.  Jack 
Wagner suggested use of the word ratify.  David Eichar supported the ballot measure and cautioned 
that the ballot question should not be too long.   
 
Councilmembers discussed the wording of the ballot argument.  It was moved by Clm. Hundley, 
seconded by Clm. Edwards to approve Resolution No. 25-2016 entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA GIVING NOTICE OF AND ESTABLISHING THE 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR A REGULAR ELECTION TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7.24 OF THE CITY’S MUNICIPAL CODE WHICH MORE 
COMPREHENSIVELY PROHIBITS SMOKING AND IMPOSES MORE STRINGENT CONTROLS ON 
SMOKING IN PLACES AND BUILDINGS IN THE CITY; AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY 
ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT TO CONDUCT THE ELECTION ON THE CITY’S BEHALF with the 
ballot question amended to replace the word restrictions with protections and appointment of the 
Mayor to write the ballot argument.  The motion carried unanimously.  City Attorney Walter pointed out 
that the ordinance had been modified to make it clear that smoking was prohibited on City streets and 
sidewalks.  



DRAFT MINUTES 

July 18, 2016, Page 6 of 6 

 
 

8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY – No items 

 

9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Gallian reported on the Sonoma County Transportation and Regional Climate Protection 
Agency, the Highway 121/116 intersection planning meeting, the Grange BBQ at the Garden Park, 
and the Schellville Fire BBQ fundraiser.  She expressed some concerns relating to the Half Marathon 
and its impact on the Plaza and with matters of public safety.  
 
Clm. Edwards stated he had received numerous calls from citizens complaining about the Half 
Marathon and impact on local streets.  He stated they had constructed fencing in the Plaza and 
poured wine on the lawn and he had observed people getting into their vehicles with glasses of wine.  
Clm. Edwards stated that the Plaza was looking pretty beat up and he requested that the Council look 
at the Plaza Use policy in the near future. 
 

10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF 

 
City Manager Giovanatto announced the City Party would be held on Thursday July 28, 2016.  A 
tradition dating back to 2001, the City Party was a way for the City to say thank you to its citizens.  
She announced that there would be two seats up for election in November and that the Nomination 
Period ran from July 18 through August 12 and if anyone was interested in running they should 
contact the City Clerk. 
 

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
David Eichar stated some events were just too large for Sonoma; that most voters were not aware 
that an ordinance passed by ballot could not be amended by the Council; he liked that the City 
Council had the power to cancel the agreement with the Visitor Bureau if it became necessary; and he 
would like to see an anonymous complaint system in place.  City Manager Giovantto responded that 
although the City does not release the name of a complaining party, they do not accept anonymous 
complaints because if it lead to legal action the complaining party would need to testify.  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:22 p.m. in the memory of Owen Bradley Todeschini. 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Sonoma City Council on the      day of       2016. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Gay Johann 
Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 
 



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4C 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Award Contract to Peckham &McKenney for 
Executive Search Services (City Manager) and Authorize the City Manager to Sign 

Summary 

At the June 27 Council meeting the City Council gave direct to staff to issue a Request for Proposals to 
qualified Executive Search Firms to assist the Council in recruitment efforts for a successor City 
Manager.  Seven firms received the RFP document which included a closing date of July 29th.  Three 
firms submitted proposals, with the other four firms responding that they were unable to submit a 
proposal due to other time commitments.  The firms submitting proposals are as follows: 
 

1. Ralph Andersen & Associates - $26,750 

2. Bob Murray & Associates - $17,500 + Expenses (NTE $6,900) 

3. Peckham & McKenney - $18,500 + Expenses (NTE $7,500) 

Each firm submitted a complete proposal which complied with all provisions of the RFP and are 
included with the agenda summary.  The City Manager and City Attorney have reviewed all three 
proposals and each firm has the background and varying strengths to complete the process and 
provide highly professional and technical services.  Both the City Attorney and City Manager are 
recommending that the firm of Peckham & McKenney be awarded the contract for Executive Search 
Services for a new Sonoma City Manager.  Peckham & McKenney has worked with the City previously 
in the recruitment of the Finance Director and is currently working with Valley of the Moon Fire District 
for the recruitment of the Fire Chief. This firm has a knowledge base that gives them a solid foundation 
of the character of Sonoma that staff believes will be an asset when working with the Council.  Their 
main focus on recruitment is also centered on “fit” in an organization which is key in any successful 
organization. Bobbie Peckham will be lead executive on this recruitment. The firm is prepared to begin 
immediately with Council interviews and preparation of recruitment brochure.  The Council will have 
availability of Ms. Peckham to determine interview schedules and potential options.  Timing is 
paramount in the recruitment of a new City Manager and should begin immediately.  Staff is confident 
in the ability of  Peckham & McKenney to maintain the timeframes set for a successful transition to a 
new City Manager. 

Recommended Council Action 

Award contract to Peckham & McKenney for Executive Search Services for the position of City 
Manager and authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City. 

Alternative Actions 

Award contract to alternate Executive Search Firm; request additional information. 

Financial Impact 

Maximum cost $26,000 split between funds within City budget. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  



Agenda Item 4C 

 

 

Attachments: 

List of City Manager Recruitment Firms solicited 
Peckham & McKenney proposal 
 
Due to the size of the proposals received, distribution was made to Councilmembers only.  Copies may 
be viewed by at City Hall during normal business hours. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

While this item doesn’t align with one specific Council Goal, I believe that it aligns with all Council 
Goals as the next City Manager will be charged with completing the FY 2016-17 Goals and carrying 
forth the leadership provided by the Council. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Compliance with Climate 2020 Action Plan Target Goals: 

 

cc: 

 

 



 

LIST OF CITY MANAGER RECRUITERS 

 
 
Bob Murray & Associates (916) 784-9080 apply@bobmurrayassoc.com  
 
Teri Black & Company – info@tbcrecruiting.com  
 
Management Partners (408) 437-5400 abelknap@managementpartners.com  
 
Ralph Andersen & Associates (916) 630-4900 info@ralphandersen.com  
 
Roberts Consulting Group, Inc. (818) 783-7752 robertsrcg@msn.com 
 
Peckham and McKenney (866) 912-1919 bobbi@peckhamandmckenney.com  
 
William Avery & Associates (408) 399-4424 jobs@averyassoc.net  
 

mailto:apply@bobmurrayassoc.com
mailto:info@tbcrecruiting.com
mailto:abelknap@managementpartners.com
mailto:info@ralphandersen.com
mailto:robertsrcg@msn.com
mailto:bobbi@peckhamandmckenney.com
mailto:jobs@averyassoc.net












































 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4D 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Finance 

Staff Contact  

DeAnna Hilbrants, Finance Director 

Agenda Item Title 

Acceptance of the City of Sonoma Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2015 as prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board statements.   

Summary 

Each year, in compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standards and standards of the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) an independent audit of the City’s financial 
statements is completed by an outside audit firm.   

The audit firm of JJACPA, Inc. has completed the annual audit of the City’s financial transactions for 
FY 2014-2015.  The audit was completed on June 29, 2016.  The opinion of the auditor is that the 
financial statements fairly present the financial position of all funds of the City.   

In an effort to provide additional information to our constituents, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2015; the Finance Department completed a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  In 
addition to the GASB required annual financial statements, the CAFR includes additional statistical 
and historical data such as historical information about financial trends, revenue and debt capacity, 
demographic and economic information, and operating information.  

An Audit Committee meeting was held on August 8, 2016 to review the CAFR as well as audit 
procedures and audit results.   

Recommended Council Action 

Accept final Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

Alternative Actions 

Request additional information. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

The Annual Financial Report/Audit has been distributed in hardcopy to Councilmembers only. An 
electronic copy can be found on the City’s website www.sonomacity.org or by contacting the City of 
Sonoma Finance Department. 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

Fiscal Management:  Maintain high level fiscal accountability that ensures short and long-term 
sustainability of City’s financial position; provide for effective and efficient management of local 
taxpayers’ dollars; apply prudent internal policies and practices to assure the most cost-effective 
methods are utilized; be wise with our resources. 

cc: 

 

 

http://www.sonomacity.org/


 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4E 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval and ratification of the appointment of Thomas Haeuser to the Sonoma County Library 
Commission for a four-year term. 

Summary 

The Sonoma County Library is a free public library providing community education and literacy 
services to the residents of Sonoma County. The Library is defined by the 2014 Amended and 
Restated Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), an agreement signed by the Sonoma County Board of 
Supervisors and authorized officers of Sonoma County cities and towns. The Library is governed by 
the Sonoma County Library Commission, which is composed of eleven appointees from the County 
and the communities that signed the JPA. In addition to hiring the Library Director and appointing 
members of the Library Advisory Boards, the Commission provides structure and direction for the 
operational, administrative and fiscal oversight of the Library.  The members of the Sonoma County 
Library Commission are the County of Sonoma, the Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, 
Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor. One 
additional member is appointed jointly by both Sonoma County and the City of Santa Rosa. 
 
Commissioners must be Sonoma County residents, and are appointed to four year terms and serve 
pursuant to the rules of appointment adopted by each Member’s governing body.  They receive 
training on rules and procedures, legal responsibilities, ethics, and library practice.  A Commissioner 
is expected to attend all regularly scheduled meetings. The appointing body is notified by the Chair 
after a Commissioner has had three (3) absences in one calendar year.  
 
Mayor Gallian and Councilmember Cook interviewed several applicants on August 3 and Mayor 
Gallian has nominated Thomas Haeuser for appointment to the Library commission a four-year term 
(8/1/2016 – 8/1/2020). 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve and ratify the nomination. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

Library Commissioner Job Description and Thomas Haeuser’s commission application 
Alignment with Council Goals:   

N/A 

cc: Thomas Haueser via email 

 



Sonoma County Library Commissioner Job Description  

Summary  

Provides governance for the Sonoma County Library; establishes policy; sets goals and  objectives; hires 

and evaluates the director; establishes and monitors the annual budget; signs necessary contracts; 

exercises such other powers, consistent with the law to foster the effective use and management of the 

library.  

Responsibilities   

 Hires, sets salary, evaluates and supervises a qualified library Director to implement Commission 

decisions and directions and to carry out day-to-day operation of the library and its programs and 

services  

 Determines and adopts written policies to govern the operation and services of the library  

 Works with Director to establish short and long range goals for the library  

 Attends all regular and special meetings of the Commission and participates in subcommittees as 

necessary 

 Attends appropriate library functions including Library Advisory Board meetings, fundraisers, special 

events and other activities 

 Sets an annual budget and approves expenditure of funds; monitors budget and expenses 

throughout the year  

 Understands pertinent local, state, and federal laws; actively supports library legislation in the state 

and nation  

 Advocates for the interests and needs of the countywide library system 

 Represents the interests and needs of the community  

 Acts as liaison with the public, interpreting and informing local government, media and public of 

library services and needs  

 Sets parameters and authority level for Library Management’s labor negotiations with the Union; 

adopts MOU contract; serves as the employer to library staff 

 Lends expertise and experience to the organization  

 Maintains knowledge of library issues, laws, and trends, and their implications for library use 

 Understands the Brown Act as it applies to Library governance 

 Is familiar with the Joint Powers Agreement governing the Library  

 Reviews and signs necessary contracts  

 Reports activities to local officials  

  

Qualifications  

 Is interested in the library and its services  

 Has the ability and time to participate effectively in Commission activities and decision making  

 Is able to represent varied needs and interests of the community and of the library  

 Has strong interpersonal and communication skills  



 Has the ability to work with governing bodies, agencies, elected officials, library staff and members 

of the public 

 Has the ability to handle opposition and make decisions in the interest of library service  

Desired Experience 

 Familiarity with the Sonoma County Library 

 Experience working with one of the Library’s Advisory Boards, Friends of the Library groups, or other 

support group 

  

Time Commitment  

 The Commission meets monthly at a time convenient for members. (Currently, meetings are held 

the first Monday of each month at 6:30pm). Meetings can last up to four hours, and considerable 

preparation time is needed prior to each meeting.  

 It has been common practice for the Commission to devote two all-day workshop meetings to 

budget planning. 

 Commissioners may serve on one or more subcommittees or ad hoc task forces in addition to their 

regular duties. 

 Under terms of the Joint Powers Agreement, trustees shall hold their office for four years from the 

date of appointment and until their successors are appointed.  

 Special meetings or committee meetings may be called as necessary at times that are convenient to 

members and that comply with the open public meeting law. 











 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4F 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager / City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of a waiver of commission attendance rules for Planning Commissioner Chip Roberson. 

Summary 

Pursuant to Sonoma Municipal Code section 2.40.010 if a member of one of the City’s commissions 
misses three consecutive meetings or one-third of any calendar year’s meetings they have vacated 
their position.  The same municipal code section shown below allows commissioners to request a 
waiver of the attendance rule by the City Council due to special circumstances. In 2007 the City 
Council also adopted a policy providing for the waiver of attendance requirements for members of 
the City Boards and Commissions.  

 

Planning Commissioner Chip Roberson has requested such a waiver.  He missed four meetings 
May through July.  His absence from Commission meetings was unavoidable due to a family 
member’s medical condition. 

 

Staff feels that Commissioner Roberson’s situation falls within the allowable circumstances whereby 
his absences should be excused and that he be allowed to continue serving on the Planning 
Commission until his term expires on August 19, 2017.   

Recommended Council Action 

Approve a waiver of the commission attendance rules for Chip Roberson. 

Alternative Actions 

Council Discretion. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

Waiver of Attendance Requirements Policy 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

N/A 

cc:    Chip Roberson via email 

 



 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4G 
 
08/15/2016 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of a waiver of the limitation on successive terms and ratification of the reappointment of 
Pam Personette to the Cultural and Fine Arts Commission. 

Summary 

The Cultural & Fine Arts Commission consists of seven members and one alternate who serve at 
the pleasure of the City Council.  Appointments are made when a nomination by the Mayor is ratified 
by the City Council.  
 

Pam Personette has served on the Cultural and Fine Arts Commission since September 3, 2008 and 
will have completed a full eight years on the Commission this September.  Ms. Personette plays a 
vital role on the Commission and has had an exemplary attendance record.  She has expressed a 
desire to continue to serve and Mayor Gallian has agreed to nominate her for reappointment 
contingent upon the Council approving a waiver of the limitation on successive terms. 
 

Pertinent Municipal Code Sections: 

2.40.070 Term of office. 

No commissioner shall serve for a total of more than eight years. A commissioner shall first be 
appointed for a two-year term; the council may reappoint a commissioner to a second term of four 
years and may also reappoint a commissioner to a third term of two years. All reappointments shall 
be made at the sole discretion of the city council utilizing the procedures contained in SMC 2.40.100. 
 

2.40.090  City council may waive limitation on successive terms of office. 
Notwithstanding any limitation on the length of the term which an individual member of a board or 
commission may serve, or any limitation on the number of successive terms which may be served, 
the city council may, by a four-fifths vote of its membership, appoint or reappoint any incumbent 
member of a city board or commission to continue in office beyond the prior limitation or to fill the 
unexpired term of any office vacated by any other member of a board or commission. 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve the waiver of the limitation on successive terms and ratify the re-appointment. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments:   None 

cc:     Pam Personette via email 

 





 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4H 
 
08/15/2016 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval and ratification of the reappointment of Kate Schertz to the Cultural and Fine Arts 
Commission. 

Summary 

The Cultural & Fine Arts Commission consists of seven members and one alternate who serve at 
the pleasure of the City Council.  Appointments are made when a nomination by the Mayor is ratified 
by the City Council.  

 

Kate Schertz has served on the Cultural and Fine Arts Commission since September 15, 2014 and 
currently presides as the Chair.  Mayor Gallian has nominated her for reappointment for an 
additional four-year term ending September 15, 2020. 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve and ratify the re-appointment. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments:   

 None 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

N/A 

cc:     Kate Schertz via email 

 

 



 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4I 
 
08/15/2016 

                                                                                         

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval and ratification of the reappointment of Fred Allebach to the Community Services and 
Environment Commission for an additional four-year term. 

Summary 

The Community Services and Environment Commission consists of 9 members and 1 alternate who 
serve at the pleasure of the City Council.  Appointments are made when a nomination by the Mayor 
is ratified by the City Council.  Fred Allebach has served on the Commission since August 18, 2014 
and is eligible for reappointment to an additional four-year term ending August 18, 2020. 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve and ratify the reappointment. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

n/a 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

 

Attachments: 

None 

CC:         CC:  Fred Allebach via email 

 

 



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council/Successor Agency 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
5A 
 
08/15/2016 

                                                                                            

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of the portions of the minutes of the July 6 and July 18, 2016 City Council meetings 
pertaining to the Successor Agency. 

Summary 

The minutes have been prepared for Council review and approval. 

Recommended Council Action 

Approve the minutes. 

Alternative Actions 

Correct or amend the minutes prior to approval. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

 

Attachments: 

See agenda item 4B for the minutes 

Alignment with Council Goals:  N/A 

cc:  NA 

 



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
6A 
 
08/15/16 

 
Department 

Planning 

Staff Contact  

Associate Planner Atkins 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, consideration, and possible adoption of a resolution approving Climate Action 2020 and 
Beyond and making responsible agency findings pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA), including a statement of overriding considerations. 

Summary 

Climate Action 2020 is a collaborative effort among all nine cities and the County of Sonoma to take 
coordinated action in reducing GHG emissions, both locally and county-wide. Through the 
implementation of this program, participating jurisdictions will achieve compliance with Bay Area Air 
Quality Management District (BAAQMD) guidelines and other related policies that establish 
reduction targets for GHG emissions, including AB 32, CEQA, and local GHG reduction goals. 
Building upon the climate protection efforts and goals established in the 2008 Community Climate 
Action Plan created by the Climate Protection Campaign, the goal of CA 2020 is to update all 
municipal and community-wide GHG inventories, evaluate and define emission targets, and create 
an implementation plan to reach those targets. The updated climate action plan developed for each 
jurisdiction is tailored to its specific circumstances while at the same time benefitting from a county-
wide perspective. The approach called for in the Final Draft CA 2020 is for each local government to 
contribute measures towards a countywide greenhouse gas reduction target of 25% below 1990 
levels by 2020, on a path towards a long-term goal of 80% below 1990 levels by 2050. 

At its meeting of June 6, 2016, the City Council conducted a preliminary review of the draft Climate 
Action Plan, at which time the Council directed that additional analysis be conducted on eight 
implementation measures, with the goal further reducing local GHG emissions. With the assistance 
of the RCPA, staff has completed this analysis. Implementing the additional eight measures would 
result in 2020 GHG reductions in the amount of 36,460 MTCO2e (million metric tons of carbon 
dioxide equivalent), and a local effort of 1,360 MTCO2e. Compared to the previous draft CAP, this is 
an increase in local reductions in the amount of 54%. The draft plan now before the City Council 
reflects these changes. 

The purpose of this hearing is as follows: 1) confirm that the revised approach for Sonoma’s 
contributions to CAP have been modified to reflect local opportunities, priorities, and constraints: 2) 
adopt Climate Action 2020 and Beyond; and, 3) make responsible agency findings pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act, including a statement of overriding considerations.  

Staff from the RCPA will provide a brief presentation and address questions.  

Recommended Council Action 

Adopt a Resolution approving Climate Action 2020 and Beyond and making responsible agency 
findings pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), including a statement of 
overriding considerations. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

While local participation in the Climate Action 2020 Program has required staff time to assist with 
information development and public outreach, these costs are reimbursed in an amount not to 

exceed $11,697 over the two-year plan development period. Future implementation costs 

associated with locally-implemented programs are to be determined and will be the responsibility of 
the City of Sonoma.  



 

 

 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 

   Not Applicable  

Attachments 

1. Supplemental Report 
2. Summary of Important Changes in Final Draft 
3. Resolution 
4. Enclosure: Climate Action 2020 and Beyond 
5. Enclosure: Climate Action 2020 and Beyond Appendices 
6. Enclosure: Climate Action 20202 Summary Booklet 
7. Enclosure: Final Environmental Impact Report 

A printed copy of the Public Review Draft Climate Action Plan, Appendices, and Final Environmental 
Impact Report are available for review at City Hall. 

Alignment with Council Goals:  

This item relates to the City Council goal pertaining to Policy & Leadership, which includes expanding 
focus on elements of the Climate Action 2020 targets. 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals:  

Enacting the Climate Action Plan will help with the Climate 2020 Action Plan target goals. 

cc:  CSEC via email 
 Andrew Krause, via email 
 David Brin, via email 
 Laura Declercq, via email 

 

 

 



\ 
SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

 
Discussion, consideration, and possible adoption of a resolution approving Climate Action 2020 

and Beyond and making responsible agency findings pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), including a statement of overriding considerations. 

 
For the City Council Meeting of August 15, 2016 

 

 
Background 

 
In May of 2013, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute a memoranda of 
agreement to participate and qualify for funding in the County-wide Greenhouse Gas Reduction 
Implementation Program (GRIP), subsequently renamed Climate Action 2020 (CAP). CAP is a 
collaborative effort among all nine cities and the County of Sonoma to take further actions in 
reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions community-wide. Through the implementation of this 
program, participating jurisdictions will achieve compliance with Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) guidelines and other related policies that establish reduction 
targets for GHG emissions, including AB 32, CEQA, and local GHG reduction goals. Building 
upon the climate protection efforts and goals established in the 2008 Community Climate Action 
Plan created by the Climate Protection Campaign, the goal of Climate Action 2020 is to update 
all municipal and community-wide GHG inventories, evaluate emission targets, and to create an 
implementation plan to reach those targets. The updated Climate Action Plan (CAP) developed 
for each jurisdiction is tailored to its specific circumstances while at the same time benefitting 
from a county-wide perspective. The approach called for in the Final Draft CAP is for each local 
government to contribute measures towards a countywide greenhouse gas reduction target of 
25% below 1990 levels by 2020, on a path towards a long term goal of 80% below 1990 levels 
by 2050. 
 
On March 21, 2016, the City Council received an introduction to the draft CAP and directed the 
CSEC to review it and provide recommendations to City Council for final approval. 
 
CSEC Review 

 
On April 13, 2016 the CSEC received an introduction to the CAP and on May 11, 2015 the 
Commission received a detailed presentation. After discussion and public comment, the CSEC 
made the following recommendation to the City Council: The City approve the CA2020 Plan and 

add all local measures not currently included (Council to determine the individual participation 

rate of each measure) to achieve a mix of 10% local contributions to climate action programs to 

reduce greenhouse gas emission. The CSEC also recommends that the City Council require 

compliance for all measures related to transportation and building sectors.  

 

City Council Review 

 
On June 6, 2016, the City Council considered the CSEC’s recommendation and directed staff to 

include the following eight additional measures at voluntary participation rates in the final CAP 



 2 

and return with an analysis as to the requirements for funding and staffing associated with 
implementation:  
 

 Goal 2: Increase Renewable Energy Use: Measure 2-L1 Solar in New Residential 
Development. 

 Goal 2: Increase Renewable Energy Use: Measure 2-L3 Solar in New Nonresidential 
Developments. 

 Goal 2: Increase Renewable Energy Use: Measure 2-L4 Solar in Existing nonresidential 
Buildings. 

 Goal 7: Encourage a Shift Toward Low-Carbon Fuels in Vehicles and Equipment: 
Measure 7-L2 Electrify Construction Equipment. 

 Goal 8: Reduce Idling: Measure 8-L1 Idling Ordinance. 
 Goal 11: Reduce Water Consumption: Measure 11-L2 Water Conservation for New 

Construction. 
 Goal 11: Reduce Water Consumption: Measure 11-L3 Water Conservation for Existing 

Buildings. 
 Goal 12: Increase Recycled water and Greywater Use: Measure 12-L1 Greywater Use. 

 
In addition, the Planning Department has increased the participation rate of Measure 4-L1 
(Mixed-Use Development in City Centers and Along Transit Corridors) from 20% to 50% based 
a review of sites zoned for mixed-use development, as many are currently located along transit 
corridors.  
 
Implementing the additional eight measures would result in 2020 GHG reductions in the amount 
of 36,460 MTCO2e (million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent), and a local effort of 1,360 
MTCO2e. Compared to the previous draft CAP (March 2016) presented to the City Council on 
June 6, 2016, (900 MTCO2e) this is an increase in local reductions in the amount of 54%. 
 
The additional measure requested by the City Council can be implemented with the following 
staffing and actions: 

 Measure 2-L1 Solar in New Residential Development (participation rate 8%).  
o Provide streamlined permitting for solar permits. 
o Require solar ready features for subdivision of 10 or more units. 
o Require solar ready features for new multi-family development. 
o Property owners can participate in the Property Accessed Clean Energy (PACE) 

program. 
 Measure 2-L3 Solar in New Nonresidential Developments (participation rate 2%). 

o Provide streamlined permitting for solar permits. 
o Require solar ready features for new developments. 
o Property owners can participate in the PACE program. 

 Measure 2-L4 Solar in Existing Nonresidential Buildings (participation rate 2%). 
o Provide streamlined permitting for solar permits. 
o Property owners can participate in the PACE program. 

 Measure 7-L2 Electrify Construction Equipment (participation rate 5%). 
o Provided the Leaf Blower ordinance is upheld in the November 2016 general 

election the measure would be met, if not, the City would need to revisit the issue. 



 3 

 Measure 8-L1 Idling Ordinance (limit idling to 3 minutes). 
o Staff will draft a revised commercial vehicle idling ordinance.  
o Police enforcement of the existing ordinance is a low priority and not expected to 

change with an updated ordinance. 
 Measure 11-L2 Water Conservation for New Construction (50% of new residential and 

50% of new residential and nonresidential construction). 
o Adopt CALGreen Tier 1 water-efficiency measures for new residential and 

nonresidential construction. 
 Measure 11-L3 Water Conservation for Existing Buildings. 

o The City has a Water Conservation Coordinator. 
o Education and outreach programs to educate residents and businesses about the 

importance of water efficiency and how to reduce water use. 
o The City, in conjunction with other agencies, offers rebate programs for turf 

removal, clothes washers, and toilets. 
o A Water Audit Program is offered for free water audits. 
o Landscape plans are reviewed to ensure water conservation techniques are used. 
o Require water-efficient upgrades when permitting renovations or additions of 

existing buildings. 
o Water conservation pricing (e.g. tiered rate structures) to the extent allowed by 

law to encourage efficient water use. 
 Measure 12-L1 Greywater Use 

o Replace 2% of potable water currently used for non-potable uses with greywater. 
o Greywater handout for landscaping irrigation is available. 
o New greywater standards for indoor use will be in place effective January 16, 

2017. 
 

Council Member Comments 

 Councilmember Edwards asked what the City is already doing with regard to reducing 
GHDs. Chapter 5.8.2 describes the City of Sonoma’s existing actions to reduce GHG 

Emissions, which consists of a list of ordinances and General Plan policies for the 
following sectors: building energy; land use and transportation; waste minimization and 
recycling; water and wastewater efficiency; and, agriculture, urban forestry, and natural 
areas. 

 Councilmember Hundley inquired as to why Measure 2-L2 (Solar in Existing Residential 
Buildings) was selected and not the other solar measures. The Building Administrator has 
indicated that the City already provides streamlined permitting for solar PV permits, 
which will provide the level of participation (11%) indicated for in the measure. 

 Mayor Gallian inquired if there was technology underway to make tankless water heaters 
more water conserving. Tankless water heaters are energy efficient and it does take time 
for the hot water to reach the faucet. Some possible solutions to address this issue are to 
install multiple tankless water heaters, install a hot water recirculating system, or save the 
cooler water in a bucket and reuse it in landscaped areas. 
Mayor Gallian also asked if the City receives credit for waste diversion with regard to 
construction. The CALGreen + Tier 1 Code adopted by the City Council states the 
following: 



 4 

1. For all newly constructed buildings at least 65% of the construction waste 
generated must be diverted to recycling or salvage. 

2. For all existing low-rise residential buildings, including hotels, motels, lodging 
houses, dwellings, dormitories, condominiums, shelters, congregate residences, 
employee housing, factory-built housing and other types of dwellings with 
sleeping accommodations where the addition or alteration increases the building's 
conditioned area, volume, or size and for all existing  nonresidential building 
additions of 1,000 square feet or greater, and/or building alterations with a permit 
valuation of $200,000 or above, at least 50% of the construction waste generated 
must be diverted to recycling or salvage. 

 
Final Draft CAP 

 

The Final Draft CA 2020 includes an updated target to reduce GHGs in the City of Sonoma by 
36,460 metric tons by achieving the flowing participation goas for local measures (from CAP 
Table 5.8-5): 
 
City of Sonoma Local Measures    

Goal 1: Increase Building Energy Efficiency 173   

Measure 1-L2: Outdoor Lighting  172  80% of outdoor lighting to 
participate 

Measure 1-L3: Shade Tree Planting  1  50 trees planted 

Goal 2: Increase Renewable Energy Use 394   

Measure 2-L1: Solar in New Residential Development  2  8% of new houses to 
participate 

Measure 2-L2: Solar in Existing Residential Building  245  11% of existing homes with 
solar 

Measure 2-L3: Solar in New Non-Residential 
Developments 

 7  2% of new non-residential 
development to participate 

Measure 2-L4: Solar in Existing Non-Residential 
Buildings 

 141  2% of existing non-residential 
development with solar 

Goal 4: Reduce Travel Demand Through Focused 
Growth 

 18    

Measure 4-L1: Mixed-Use Development in City Centers 
and Along Transit Corridors 

 16  50% of growth to result in mixed 
use 

Measure 4-L2: Increase Transit Accessibility  2  15% of growth to be 25+ units 

Measure 4-L3: Supporting Land Use Measures  NQ  Yes  

Measure 4-L4: Affordable Housing Linked to Transit  1  20% of new development to be 
affordable 

Goal 5: Encourage a Shift Toward Low-Carbon 
Transportation Options 

26   

Measure 5-L4: Supporting Bicycle/Pedestrian Measures  NQ  Yes  

Measure 5-L5: Traffic Calming  26  80% of trips affected 



 5 

Measure 5-L7: Supporting Parking Policy Measures  NQ  Yes  

Goal 7: Encourage a Shift Toward Low-Carbon Fuels 
in Vehicles and Equipment 

 24    

Measure 7-L1: Electric Vehicle Charging Station 
Program 

 2  3 charging stations installed 

Measure 7-L2: Electrify Construction Equipment  22  5% of equipment 

Measure 7-L3: Reduce Fossil Fuel Use in Equipment 
through Efficiency or Fuel Switching 

 NQ  Yes  

Goal 8: Reduce Idling     

Measure 8-L1: Idling Ordinance  NQ  2 minutes below state law 

Goal 9: Increase Solid Waste Diversion    

Measure 9-L1: Create Construction and Demolition 
Reuse and Recycling Ordinance 

 <1  0%  

Goal 11: Reduce Water Consumption  729    

Measure 11-L1: Senate Bill SB X7-7 - Water Conservation 
Act of 2009* 

 436  10% Reduction in per capita 
water use 

Measure 11-L2: Water Conservation for New 
Construction* 

 16  50%/ 
50% 

% of new residential/ 
nonresidential 
development 

Measure 11-L3: Water Conservation for Existing 
Buildings* 

 278  25%/ 
10% 

% of new residential/ 
nonresidential 
development 

Goal 12: Increase Recycled Water and Greywater Use  < 1    

Measure 12-L1: Greywater Use  < 1  2% greywater goal 

State Measure Reductions in Sonoma 22,990   

Regional Measure Reductions in Sonoma 12,110   

Local Measure Reductions in Sonoma 1,360   

Grand Total Emissions Reductions in Sonoma 36,460   

 
 

Additional edits made in the updated draft document are intended to better align the plan with 
community priorities by direction from elected officials, to update analysis with new and locally 
specific data sources, to address typos or errors in the text, to improve clarity, and to respond to 
feedback from the community (see attached Important Changes in Final Draft). 
 

Discretionary Approvals 

 

An additional option the City Council may want to consider to further reduce GHGs would be to 
implement a policy that requires discretionary projects to require solar ready features. This could 
take the form of requiring solar ready features in conditions of approval for Planning and Design 
Review and Historic Preservation Commission applications, which require a building permit in 
conjunction with a new building or a remodel. While this policy may have minimal impact on 
the Existing Residential Development (2-L2) and Existing Nonresidential Buildings (2-L4) 



 6 

measures it could have a moderate impact on the measure participation rates for New Residential 
Development (2-L1) and New Nonresidential Development (2-L3). If the City Council is 
interested in pursuing a policy to require solar on specific discretionary projects it could refer the 
task to the Planning and Design Review and Historic Preservation Commissions for policy 
development with final approval by the City Council at a future date. 
 
CEQA Process – Programmatic EIR 

 

RCPA staff working with ICF International prepared the environmental analysis associated with 
Climate Action 2020.  The analysis provides the RCPA Board, responsible agencies including 
the City of Sonoma, trustee agencies, and the public with information about the potential 
environmental effects of implementing the proposed CAP. By agreement and pursuant to the 
CEQA guidelines, RCPA prepared and certified the EIR as the “lead” agency. The individual 

local agencies may utilize the EIR as responsible agencies.  As a responsible rather than the lead 
agency, the city need not certify the EIR, but must consider it in deciding whether to approve the 
CAP.  Like the lead agency, the city as a responsible agency is required to override significant 
impacts. The impacts identified would come from subsequent projects in furtherance of the plan, 
rather than the plan itself.  The Program EIR discloses potential impacts and the means by which 
they can be mitigated.  Because the means of mitigating the potential impacts would not be in 
RCPA’s jurisdiction, and pursuant to CEQA’s requirements, the identified mitigation measures 

are identified as measures that “can and should” be implemented by RCPA’s member 

jurisdictions. 
 
Findings in the Final EIR 

 

The RCPA released the Draft EIR for Climate Action 2020 on March 21, 2016. The public 
comment period on the Draft EIR was from March 21, 2016 to May 6, 2016. A public 
information meeting was held on April 20, to accept comments on the DEIR, and the opportunity 
to comment in writing or via the RCPA website was noticed in the Notice of Availability and 
Board and Council reports presented throughout the county. The FEIR includes the individual 
CEQA comments received and a detailed response to each comment. The RCPA Board certified 
the FEIR and adopted the Final Regional CAP on July 11, 2016, through RCPA Resolution 
2016-002 (attached). With one exception the EIR identifies no significant impacts. The single 
exception is that the addition of solar roofs, which are incentivized, in certain circumstances 
could substantially change a character-defining feature of an individual historic building. State 
law limits the circumstances under which these types of projects can be denied. Thus, the 
feasible options for mitigation of this potential impact are limited.  The proposed findings would 
override this uncertain but potential significant impact, as required by CEQA for the adoption of 
the CAP. The proposed statement of overriding considerations in the findings tracks the findings 
of the CAP itself, which is that the benefits of the CAP include reductions in GHG emissions, 
but also energy savings, air quality improvements, public health improvements, job creation, 
resource conservation, cost savings, and climate resilience. 
 
RCPA Board 

 



 7 

On July 11, 2016, the Reginal Climate Protection Authority Board of Directors adopted 
Resolution 2016-002, making findings, certifying the Final EIR for Climate Action 2020, and 
adopting Climate Action 2020. 
 
Financial Impact 

 

Plan Development: While local participation in the Climate Action 2020 Program has required 
staff time to assist with information development and public outreach, these costs are reimbursed 
in an amount not to exceed $11,697 over the two-year CAP preparation period.  
 

Plan Implementation: CAP implementation costs are to be determined and will be the 
responsibility of the City of Sonoma. Other opportunities for funding consist of potential grants 
and future funding by the RCPA.  
 

Recommendation 

 

Adopt Resolution approving Climate Action 2020 and Beyond, make responsible agency findings 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and adopt a statement of 
overriding considerations. 



Plan 

Section 

Important Changes in Final Draft 

Throughout  Clarified that emissions “sectors” are more accurately described as “sources”; economic 
sectors contribute emissions from sources such as transportation and building energy 

Executive 

Summary  Corrected Figure to include Santa Rosa in the 1990 backcast. 

Chapter 1 

 Added equity as a co-benefit. 

 Clarified that the RCPA Board previously adopted goals of 25% below 1990 by 2015 and 
40% below 1990 by 2035 but the Plan establishes new targets of 25% below 1990 levels by 
2020, 40% below 1990 by 2030, and 80% below 1990 by 2050. 

 Clarified use of the template consistency checklist for CEQA tiering and streamlining. 

Chapter 2 

 Clarified that the plan methods for GHG accounting are consistent with standard practice 
and include leading practices enabled by the work of partners like the Sonoma County 
Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, and the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District who published two instrumental reports in early 2016 regarding 
quantification of carbon sinks and consumption based emissions, respectively. 

 Updated the backcast, baseline, and forecast inventories for emissions from livestock 
manure based on Sonoma County specific data on manure management practices provided 
by the Resource Conservation Districts. 

 Expanded on the discussion of existing carbon sinks in Sonoma County based on the 
findings of the Climate Action through Conservation project. 

 Expanded the discussion of consumption based emissions using the findings of the UC 
Berkeley/BAAQMD team that evaluated household consumption based emissions in the Bay 
Area. 

Chapter 3 

 Updated countywide Business-As-Usual, Target, and GHG reduction measure potential 
numbers and figures based on new livestock manure data and final city/county measure 
selections. 

 Updated 2030 and 2050 vision discussion based on new and emerging policy goals for the 
State. 

 Clarified that measures in support of the Advanced Climate Initiatives (goals 17-20) will be 
led by regional entities with support from local jurisdictions ; these measures remain non-
quantified in the Final CAP and are not relied upon to achieve the reduction target for 2020. 

 Updated Table 3-11, which summarizes each jurisdiction’s participation in local measures, to 
reflect final selections by city and the county, and to include Santa Rosa CAP measures 
equivalent to those in Climate Action 2020.  

 Expanded hot water fuel switching measure to include electrifying other building equipment, 
and to clarify intent to focus on highly efficient systems. 

 Clarified that local land use strategies to reduce transportation emissions include Urban 
Growth Boundaries, community separators, and land conservation. 

 Replaced the methane digester measure with a broader manure management measure that 
includes any techniques that reduce methane emissions, including use of digesters.  

Chapter 4 
 Expanded the discussion of adaptive management to clarify how plan measures will be 

amended if inadequate to meet the adopted reduction target and contributions proposed by 
each jurisdiction. 

Chapter 5 

 Updated city and county specific discussion and measure commitments at the request of 
Councils or the Board. 

 Participation rates proposed for each measure for each local government are now included. 

 Added detail to the City of Santa Rosa section to include data and commitments from their 
adopted Community Climate Action Plan. 

Chapter 6  No substantial edits. 



Plan 

Section 

Important Changes in Final Draft 

Chapter 7 
 No substantial edits. 

Appendices 

 Appendix A – plan consistency checklist: updated to include directions for tracking 
implementation, customizing it to each jurisdiction, how to address project GHG impacts 
when the checklist is not appropriate, and clarified language to better guide project 
applicants and planners when using the checklist. 

 Appendix B – inventory and forecast methods: were updated to include discussion of new 
manure management data provided by RCDs and sequestration data included from the 
Climate Action Through Conservation project. 

 Appendix C – reduction measure analysis: was updated to reflect the change to the livestock 
manure measure to a non-quantified measure, and expanded the narrative around regional 
strategies to advance goals 17 through 20, particularly in relation to land conservation and 
carbon sequestration. 

 Appendix D – funding and financing: no substantial edits. 

 Appendix E – municipal measures: no substantial edits. 

 Appendix F – public comments: was updated to include themes from public comments 
received on the Public Review Draft. 

 



 

CITY OF SONOMA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING CLIMATE ACTION 2020 AND 
BEYOND: A REGIONAL PROGRAM FOR SONOMA COUNTY 
COMMUNITIES, MAKING RESPONSIBLE AGENCY FINDINGS 
PURSUANT TO CEQA, AND ADOPTING A STATEMENT OF 

OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Sonoma hereby finds as follows. 

1. Climate Action 2020 and Beyond:  A Regional Program For Sonoma County Communities 
(“Climate Action 2020”) is a regional climate action plan for the local governments within 
Sonoma County.  As a member agency of the Regional Climate Protection Authority 
(RCPA), the City of Sonoma has participated in the development of Climate Action 2020.  
Chapter 5 of Climate Action 2020 includes a greenhouse gas emissions profile for the 
City of Sonoma and the individual greenhouse gas measures that the City of Sonoma 
selected for inclusion in the plan. 

2. Climate Action 2020 will result in the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and is 
consistent with the requirements in CEQA Guideline 15183.5 for the streamlining and 
tiering of the analysis of greenhouse gas emissions.  Climate Action 2020 will thus result 
both in substantial environmental benefits and streamlined CEQA review. 

3. RCPA, in consultation with its member agencies, prepared and analyzed Climate Action 
2020 as the lead agency under CEQA.  On July 11, 2016, the RCPA Board of Directors 
adopted Resolution 2016-002, making findings, certifying the Final EIR for Climate Action 
2020, and adopting Climate Action 2020.  RCPA Resolution 2016-002 is attached as 
Exhibit A, and is incorporated into this Resolution by reference. 

4. Pursuant to CEQA guidelines section 15091 and 15096(h), the City of Sonoma must 
make findings as a responsible agency to adopt Climate Action 2020. 

5. The City Council has reviewed and considered the information contained in the Final EIR.  
The City Council concurs with the environmental findings in RCPA Resolution 2016-002, 
and adopts the environmental findings contained therein, for the reasons stated in RCPA 
Resolution 2016-002.  The City Council further finds that changes or alterations have 
been incorporated into the project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant 
environmental effects identified in the final EIR.  The City Council further finds that to the 
extent that impacts from Climate Action 2020 are not within the City of Sonoma’s 
jurisdiction, they can and should be mitigated as discussed in the Final EIR.  

6. The City Council concurs with the Statement of Overriding Considerations in RCPA 
Resolution 2016-002, and adopts that Statement of Overriding Considerations, and finds 
that the benefits of Climate Action 2020 outweigh the potential adverse environmental 
impacts that may result from Climate Action 2020.  Climate Action 2020 presents a road 
map to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the City of Sonoma and in Sonoma County.  
As discussed in Chapter 1 of Climate Action 2020, climate change is a serious threat and 
strong action is needed to avoid serious damage to human wellbeing and natural 
systems.  Achieving the objectives of Climate Action 2020 will reduce greenhouse gas 



 

emissions and will have numerous other collateral public benefits, such as reducing other 
unhealthful emissions, improving public health through alternative modes of 
transportation, improving access to alternative transportation, and improving efficiency 
and reducing waste.  For these reasons and the reasons stated in Climate Action 2020 
and in RCPA Resolution 2016-002, the City Council finds that specific economic, legal, 
social, technological and other benefits of Climate Action 2020 outweigh any 
unavoidable, adverse impacts of Climate Action 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, based on the foregoing findings and the record of 
these proceedings, the City Council hereby determines, declares, and orders as follows: 

1. The foregoing findings are true and correct, are supported by substantial evidence in the record, 
and are adopted as set forth above. 

2. Pursuant to CEQA Guideline section 15093, the City Council adopts a Statement of Overriding 
Considerations for Climate Action 2020 for the reasons set forth above. 

3. The City Council adopts Climate Action 2020, and the emissions reduction targets contained in 
Climate Action 2020. The City Council further determines that Climate Action 2020 meets the 
requirements of State CEQA Guideline 15183.5 for tiering and streamlining of the analysis of 
greenhouse gas emissions, and that the adoption of Climate Action 2020 provides an appropriate 
mechanism for meeting the target levels of GHG emissions. 

4. The City Council adopts the Mitigation Monitoring Program in Exhibit B to RCPA Resolution 
2016-002. 

5. The City Clerk is designated as the custodian of the documents and other materials that 
constitute the record of the proceedings upon which the City Council’s decisions herein are 
based.  These documents may be found at No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma, CA  95476. 

6. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs that a Notice of Determination shall be filed. 

 
 

The foregoing Resolution was duly adopted this 15th day of August 2016, by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   

 
 ______________________________  

       Laurie Gallian, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
__________________________________             
Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 



EXHIBIT “A”





































































 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
6B 
 
08/15/16 

 
Department 

Planning 

Staff Contact  

Associate Planner Atkins 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, consideration and possible action on an appeal of the Design Review and Historic 
Preservation Commission’s decision to approve the application of Glenn Ikemoto for site design and 
architectural review of a new single-family residence, additional residence, and accessory structures 
at 314-324 Second Street East. 

Summary 

On May 31, 2016, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC) considered 
the application of Glenn Ikemoto for site design and architectural review of a new single-family 
residence, additional residence, and accessory structures. In review of the application, the DRHPC 
concluded that the proposal fit into its surroundings and related appropriately to adjoining 
development. In response to neighbor concerns, the DRHPC discussed whether modifications 
should be required; specifically, should the additional residence be relocated on the site. However, 
at the conclusion of the discussion, none of the commissioners felt modifications were warranted, 
because it was the opinion of all commissioners that the unique shape of the property presented 
challenges with site design and the proposed location for the additional residence was the best 
choice given the circumstances of the site. Ultimately, the DRHPC approved the site design and 
architectural review application with a vote of 4-0 (Comm. Johnson recused due to proximity).  

On June 16, 2016, Ron Albert, the neighboring property owner on the north, filed an appeal of the 
DRHPC’s decision to approve the application. As noted in the attached appeal letter, the appellant 
feels that the approval is inconsistent with a number of regulations applicable to the project, 
especially with respect to compatibility and adverse impacts on surrounding properties. In addition, 
the appellant is concerned that the project would threaten the health of a Colorado blue spruce tree 
located on his property. Further details are provided in the attached supplemental report and other 
attachments. 

Recommended Council Action 

Deny the appeal, thereby upholding the decision of the Design Review and Historic Preservation 
Commission. 

Alternative Actions 

1. Deny the appeal, thereby upholding the decision of the Design Review and Historic 
Preservation Commission. 

2. Uphold the appeal and deny the design review application in its entirety.  
3. Uphold the appeal and approve the design review application subject to modifications. 
4. Refer the project back to the Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission for further 

consideration. 

Except in the case of option 4, staff will return on the following Council meeting with a Resolution 
formalizing the Council’s decision, including the necessary findings. 

Financial Impact 

N.A. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  



 

 

Attachments: 

1. Supplemental Report 
2. Appeal 
3. Minutes of the May 31, 2016, Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission meeting 
4. Design Review and Historic Preservation staff report, with attachments and correspondence 
5. Correspondence 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Alignment with Council Goals:   

N.A. 

cc:  Ron Albert (via email) 
       66 George Lane 
       Sausalito, CA  94965-1890 
 

Glenn Ikemoto (via email) 
314-324 Second Street East 
Sonoma, CA  95476 
 
Robert Baumann (via email) 
545 Third St West 
Sonoma, CA 95476 
 
Micaelia Randolph (via email) 
869 Fifth Street East 
Sonoma, CA  95476 

 
 
 

 



SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

 
Discussion, consideration and possible action on an appeal of the Design Review and Historic 

Preservation Commission’s decision to approve the application of Glenn Ikemoto for site design 
and architectural review of a new single-family residence, additional residence, and accessory 

structures at 314-324 Second Street East. 
 

For the City Council meeting of August 15, 2016 

 
 
Property Description 

 

The project site is comprised of two adjoining parcels on the east side of Second Street East just 
south of the bike path (the parcels would be merged to accommodate the overall development 
plan). The parcel fronting Second Street East has an area of ±7,361 square feet and is largely 
paved over. The larger interior parcel has an area of ±28,700 square feet and is developed with a 
residence, swimming pool, and a detached garage/workshop. Numerous trees are located on the 
site, including a large oak and rows of Italian cypresses. Adjoining uses are as follows: 

North: Duplex, single-family home and bike path/Medium Density Residential 

South: Single-family homes/Medium Density Residential 

East: Condominiums/Medium Density Residential 

West: Vella Cheese Factory and apartments (across Second St. East)/Mixed Use and Medium 
Density Residential  

The site is designated Medium Density Residential by the General Plan and has a corresponding 
R-M zoning. 

Project Description 

 
The overall development plan for the site involves a number of elements including the following: 
 
1. Demolition of the existing residence (constructed in 1955 per Assessor’s records). 
2. Construction of a one-story replacement residence with covered porch and patio. 
3. Partial conversion of an existing ±1,900-square foot detached garage and workshop into 

guestrooms/residential use (the structure would be linked to the main residence by a covered 
breezeway). 

4. Construction of an additional residence (over garage) in the front/vacant portion of the site. 
5. Construction of various detached accessory structures including a new swimming pool, pool 

house, gym, and pump house with arbor. 
6. Access and landscaping improvements throughout. 
7. Merging the two parcels into a single lot. 
 
In general, the intent of the overall project is to create a residential complex for use by the owners 
and their family. A review of the major proposed buildings and their placement follows: 
 



 2 

Main Residence: A new one-story main residence is proposed in the middle of the property. The 
main residence and the guest house and garage are proposed to be linked by a covered 
breezeway. Proposed exterior materials consist of a stucco material and a raised seam metal roof 
with matching gutter.  
 
Garage and Bedroom Wing: The existing detached garage and workshop will be converted into a 
two-story two-bedroom garage and bedroom wing. Proposed exterior materials consist of a 
stucco base with board and batten siding above and a raised seam metal roof with matching 
gutter. Note: The Planning Commission approved a Use Permit to allow the conversion of part of 
the existing detached garage and workshop into guestrooms/residential use (including a second 
story element) on March 10, 2016.  
 
Additional Residence and Garage: A new two-story residence (two-bedroom guest house with a 
kitchen) is proposed on the western portion of the property (near Second Street East). The 
building would be setback 64 feet from the front (west) property line and 7 feet from the side 
(north) property line. In staff’s view, the proposed setbacks are consistent with the setback 
requirements for the Northeast Area (20 foot front yard, with side yards at 7 foot minimum, 18 
feet combined); however, this is a point of contention in the appeal (see Discussion of Issues 
Raised in the Appeal, below). Proposed exterior materials consist of a stucco base with board and 
batten siding above and a raised seam metal roof with matching gutter. Staff would note that this 
unit is considered an additional residence, not a second unit, and the zoning designation of the 
property allows for the construction of two single-family residences on the site. 
 
Accessory Buildings: 1) A new pool house is proposed in the northwest corner of the property; 2) 
A new pump house is proposed in the northeast corner of the property; and 3) a gym building is 
proposed south of the pump house on the eastern portion of the property.  
 
Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission Review 

 

The request was considered by the Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission 
(DRHPC) through the course of a public hearing held on May 31, 2016. The review was focused 
primarily on the placement of the additional residence and the shade impact the proposed 
landscaping may have on the neighbor’s garden to the north of the subject property.  
 

Issues Raised in the Appeal 

 

On June 16, 2016, Ron Albert (owner of the property directly to the north) filed an appeal of the 
DRHPC’s decision to approve the application. As noted in the attached appeal letter, the 
appellant feels that the approval, as it relates to the additional residence, is inconsistent with a 
number of regulations applicable to the project, especially with respect to compatibility and 
adverse impacts on surrounding properties. In addition, the appellant is concerned that the project 
would threaten the health of a Colorado blue spruce tree located on the appellant’s property. 
 
Setback Standards: The appellant believes that the setback to the north of the additional 
residence should require landscaping. Section 19.40.060.C.1 of the Development Code states that 
when setbacks are screened from public view (such is the case on the subject property by a gate) 
the review authority can determine that landscaping is not necessary to fulfill the purposes of the 



 3 

chapter. The DRHPC determined that landscaping is not necessary in this area in its review of the 
landscape plan. In addition, the appellant stated that side setbacks may not be used for storage of 
garbage. Section 19.40.110.E.3 of the Development Code indicates that front or street-side yards 
and setbacks shall not be used for the storage of garbage or rubbish; it does not restrict the use of 
side yard setbacks for the storage of garbage containers. 
 
As previously stated, the proposed setbacks are consistent with the setback requirements for the 
Northeast Area (20-foot front yard, with a 7-foot minimum side yard and 18-foot combined side 
yard). As discussed during the DRHPC meeting, there is an inconsistency in the Development 
Code. Table 3-3 indicates a 7-foot minimum and 18 feet total setback; whereas, Development 
Code Section 19.18.020.B states that second stories shall be set back an additional 10 feet from 
the front setback, and five feet on the sides and rear setbacks (see attached section of the 
Development Code). It has been the interpretation of the Planning Director to apply the 
requirements of Table 3-3 when identifying required setbacks. To avoid any future confusion, 
this inconsistency will be corrected though an amendment to the Development Code.  
 

Shade Studies: The appellant and two other neighbors expressed concerns that the shade cast by 
the additional residence would impact the neighboring property to the north. To address this 
concern the property owner (Glenn Ikemoto) prepared a shade study. The result of the shade 
study indicated that during the summer months, all of the shade in the backyard property to the 
north is produced by the property’s own 2-story building and existing 40 foot Colorado blue 
spruce tree. The appellant commissioned his own shade study that indicated that shade from the 
additional residence would impact the property to the north during the winter months.  
 

Tree Issues: The appellant is concerned that the proposed additional residence could harm the 
health of an existing 40-foot tall Colorado blue spruce tree on the appellant’s property. To 

address this concern, the property owner (Glenn Ikemoto) consulted with certified arborist John 
Meserve who provided two letters (see attached) indicating that the proposed additional 
residence would not have an adverse effect on the tree provided that certain tree protection 
measure were taken prior to and during construction. The appellant consulted with certified 
arborist James MacNair, who recommended in a letter (see attached) that the additional residence 
be relocated to a minimum 15-foot distance from the property line to avoid significant impacts to 
the tree. All of these materials were reviewed by the DRHPC as part of their consideration of the 
project. 
 
Compatibility: In review of the project by the DRHPC, the issue of compatibility with 
surrounding properties was a significant consideration especially with respect to the property to 
the north (310-312 Second Street East). The DRHPC staff report (attached) noted that neighbors 
had expressed concerns regarding the compatibility of the project and the DRHPC had discretion 
to make changes to the proposal if it deemed necessary. Following the close of the public 
hearing, the DRHPC held an in depth discussion of the design review findings in relation to the 
project and issues of compatibility. Through this discussion, the Commission concluded that the 
proposal fit into its surroundings and related appropriately to adjoining development. The 
DRHPC discussed whether additional modifications should be required; specifically, should the 
additional residence building be relocated on the site plan. No commissioners felt further 
modifications were warranted; indeed, it was the opinion of all commissioners that the unique 
shape of the merged properties presented challenges with site design and the proposed location 



 4 

for the additional residence was the best choice for this particular property. In addition, it was the 
opinion of the DRHPC that the shade cast upon the property to the north by the additional 
residence would be similar to the shade that is currently cast by the existing vegetation on the 
property to the north. Ultimately, the DRHPC voted 4 to 0 (with one commissioner recused do to 
proximity) to approve the project as submitted, contingent upon the merging of the two parcels 
prior to the submittal of any building permits. 
 

Requested Action in the Appeal 

 
The appellant is requesting that the City Council overrule the DRHPC’s decision and require the 
applicant to revise site plans to comply with the appellant’s interpretation of the Development 

Code requirements. 
 
Recommendation 

 
In accordance with standard practice, staff recommends that the City Council uphold the decision 
of the DRHPC. Based on Council direction, a resolution will be prepared implementing the City 
Council’s decision, for adoption as a consent calendar item at the meeting of September 7, 2016.   























































































































































 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
7A 
 
08/15/2016 

 
Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Accept the 2015-16 Annual Report of the Sonoma 
Tourism Improvement District 

Summary 

The Sonoma Tourism Improvement District (TID) is a benefit assessment district established to fund 
marketing and promotion efforts for Sonoma lodging businesses.  The TID includes all lodging 
businesses (hotels, motels, inns, bed and breakfasts, and vacation rentals) located within the 
boundaries of the City of Sonoma.  The Council has approved the renewal of the District Management 
Plan for a 10-year period through June 30, 2025.  In accordance with the Plan, the TID board is 
required to present an annual report at the end of each year of operation to the City Council pursuant 
to Streets and Highways Code §36650.   

The TID Board representatives will present a summary report of their activities during fiscal year 2015-
16.  At the end of their presentation, Council will be asked to accept the report. 

 

Recommended Council Action 

By motion, accept 2015-2016 annual report. 

Alternative Actions 

Request additional financial information. 

Financial Impact 

TID collections provide an estimated $7,350 (1%) administrative fee payable to the City of Sonoma 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

TID Financial Report (Balance Sheet /P & L Report) 
TID Annual Budget 

cc: 

Sonoma Tourism Board c/o Bill Blum, MacArthur Place 

Jonny Westom , Sonoma Valley Visitors Bureau 

 



Jul '15 - Jun 16

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Revenue

Sonoma TID Revenues 625,000.00

Less City Collection Fees -6,250.00

Total Revenue 618,750.00

Total Income 618,750.00

Gross Profit 618,750.00

Expense

Advertising/Marketing Expenses

SVVB-Marketing Partner 525,000.00

TID Website Expenditures 5,000.00

Web/Computer 500.00

Total Advertising/Marketing Expenses 530,500.00

Business Expenses

Filing Fees 500.00

Total Business Expenses 500.00

Contract Services

Accounting/Bookkeeping Fees 3,000.00

Legal Fees 1,000.00

Outside Contract Services 0.00

Total Contract Services 4,000.00

Operations

Insurance

Insurance-D&O 1,500.00

Insurance - Liability 600.00

Total Insurance 2,100.00

Postage & Delivery 100.00

Office & Admin Expenditures 300.00

Total Operations 2,500.00

Other Types of Expenses

Research & Reports 25,000.00

Grants 50,000.00

Total Other Types of Expenses 75,000.00

Total Expense 612,500.00

Net Ordinary Income 6,250.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

Remainder to Allocate 6,250.00

Total Other Expense 6,250.00

Net Other Income -6,250.00

Net Income 0.00

7:42 AM SONOMA TOURISM IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CORP.

06/16/15 Profit & Loss Budget Overview
Cash Basis July 2015 through June 2016

Page 1



Jun 30, 16

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Operating Account 434,291.42

Total Checking/Savings 434,291.42

Total Current Assets 434,291.42

Other Assets
Start Up Expenses 52,922.00

Accumulated Amortization -9,702.00

Total Other Assets 43,220.00

TOTAL ASSETS 477,511.42

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Unrestricted Net Assets 330,171.68

Net Income 147,339.74

Total Equity 477,511.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 477,511.42

5:42 AM SONOMA TOURISM IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CORP.

07/16/16 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of June 30, 2016

Page 1



 5:39 AM

 07/16/16

 Cash Basis

 SONOMA TOURISM IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT CORP.

 Profit & Loss YTD Comparison
 June 2016

Jun 16 Jul '15 - Jun 16

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Revenue

Sonoma TID Revenues 0.00 738,201.63

Less City Collection Fees 0.00 -7,382.01

Total Revenue 0.00 730,819.62

Total Income 0.00 730,819.62

Gross Profit 0.00 730,819.62

Expense

Advertising/Marketing Expenses

Advertising/Marketing Misc 0.00 350.00

SVVB-TID Marketing 0.00 525,000.00

TID Website Expenditures 0.00 0.00

Web/Computer 0.00 107.88

Advertising/Marketing Expenses - Othe 0.00 250.00

Total Advertising/Marketing Expenses 0.00 525,707.88

Business Expenses

Filing Fees -75.00 30.00

Total Business Expenses -75.00 30.00

Contract Services

Accounting/Bookkeeping Fees 0.00 5,320.00

Bookkeeping Fees 288.00 288.00

Total Contract Services 288.00 5,608.00

Insurance

Insurance - Liability 0.00 1,995.00

Total Insurance 0.00 1,995.00

Operations

Postage & Delivery 0.00 19.60

Office & Admin Expenditures 9.95 119.40

Total Operations 9.95 139.00

Other Types of Expenses

Research & Reports 0.00 25,000.00

Grants 0.00 25,000.00

Total Other Types of Expenses 0.00 50,000.00

Total Expense 222.95 583,479.88

Net Ordinary Income -222.95 147,339.74

Net Income -222.95 147,339.74

 Page 1 of 1



 

  

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Gay Johann, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Councilmembers’ Reports on Committee Activities. 

Summary 

Council members will report on activities, if any, of the various committees to which they are assigned. 

MAYOR  GALLIAN MPT AGRIMONTI CLM. COOK CLM. EDWARDS CLM.  HUNDLEY 

City Audit Committee LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison 

ABAG Alternate ABAG Delegate Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council, Alt. 

Marin/Sonoma 
Mosquito & Vector 
Control District 

North Bay Watershed 
Association 

City Audit Committee Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council 

LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison, 
Alternate 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD, Alt. 

City Facilities 
Committee 

City Facilities 
Committee 

Sonoma Clean Power 
Alt. 

Sonoma County 
Trans. Authority & 
Regional Climate 
Protection Authority 

Sonoma County 
Trans. & Regional 
Climate Protection 
Authority, Alternate 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council 

Sonoma County 
Waste Management 
Agency 

Sonoma Clean Power 

 

Sonoma County 
Health Action & SV 
Health Roundtable 

S. V. Citizens Advisory 
Commission 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council, Alternate 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee, Alt. 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee 

Sonoma Valley 
Citizens Advisory 
Comm. Alt. 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD, Alt. 

   

VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

   

Water Advisory 
Committee 

VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee, 
Alternate 

   

 Water Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

   

 

Recommended Council Action – Receive Reports  

Attachments:  None 

 

Agenda Item:          9 

Meeting Date:         08/15/2016 
City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 


	081516 Council Agenda, Jnt w Planning Comm
	__SS_1 Housing Study Session
	3A School Attendance Proc.081516
	3B Freedom Week Proc.081516
	4B - Council Minutes
	4C City Manager Recruiter RFP process (FINAL)
	4D CAFR
	4E Appt Haeuser Library Comm.081516
	4F Waiver of attendance rule, Roberson.081516
	4G Personette
	4H Schertz reappoint AIS.081516
	4I Allebach reappoint AIS.081516
	5A - Successor Agency Minutes
	6A Climate Action 2020.081516
	6B Appeal
	Appeal _AIS - Albert Appeal-314-324SecondStreetE
	Appeal Supplemental Report
	Appeal Attachements
	Appeal Correspondence

	7A TID report
	TID AIS Presentation Annual Report 2015-16

	9- Committee Reports 2016



